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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§
232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer¨ Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer x (do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

As of July 31, 2014, the registrant had 69,114,655 shares of common stock outstanding.
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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.Financial Statements
TriNet Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

June 30,
December
31,

2014 2013
Assets (unaudited)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $100,288 $94,356
Restricted cash 15,050 15,267
Prepaid income taxes 12,821 3,331
Deferred income taxes 68 68
Prepaid expenses 9,094 7,849
Deferred loan costs and other current assets 4,418 5,238
Worksite employee related assets 664,279 772,437
Total current assets 806,018 898,546
Workers compensation receivable 40,826 25,381
Restricted cash and investments 43,454 36,968
Property and equipment, net 30,389 25,690
Goodwill 288,857 288,857
Other intangible assets, net 107,204 134,020
Deferred income taxes 1,000 1,000
Deferred loan costs and other assets 15,300 24,276
Total assets $1,333,048 $1,434,738
Liabilities and stockholders’ deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $13,145 $7,315
Accrued corporate wages 23,095 26,264
Deferred income taxes 25,406 16,535
Current portion of notes payable and borrowings under capital leases 6,061 6,669
Other current liabilities 9,943 9,078
Worksite employee related liabilities 658,040 767,624
Total current liabilities 735,690 833,485
Notes payable and borrowings under capital leases, less current portion 569,650 812,208
Workers compensation liabilities 56,253 45,309
Deferred income taxes 2,292 8,888
Other liabilities 5,822 5,210
Total liabilities 1,369,707 1,705,100
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Series G convertible preferred stock, $.0001 per share stated value — 59,059
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   (aggregate liquidation preference of $59,306); no shares authorized, issued and
outstanding

   at June 30, 2014; 5,391,441 shares authorized, issued and outstanding at December 31,
2013
Series H convertible preferred stock, $.0001 per share stated value

   (aggregate liquidation preference of $60,000); no shares authorized, issued and
outstanding

   at June 30, 2014; 4,124,986 shares authorized, issued and outstanding at December 31,
2013 — 63,819
Stockholders’ deficit:
Preferred stock, $.000025 per share stated value; 20,000,000 shares authorized;

   no shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 — —
Common stock, $.000025 per share stated value; 750,000,000 shares authorized;

   69,103,537 and 15,259,540 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2014

   and December 31, 2013 424,222 74,160
Accumulated deficit (460,711 ) (467,209 )
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (170 ) (191 )
Total stockholders’ deficit (36,659 ) (393,240 )
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit $1,333,048 $1,434,738

See accompanying notes.
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TriNet Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended June
30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Professional service revenues $82,260 $61,080 $165,135 $120,311
Insurance service revenues 442,746 302,352 868,783 594,191
Total revenues 525,006 363,432 1,033,918 714,502
Costs and operating expenses:
Insurance costs 400,195 269,217 781,352 523,129
Cost of providing services (exclusive of depreciation and

   amortization of intangible assets) 34,034 23,671 67,677 46,486
Sales and marketing 34,992 25,389 66,829 48,020
General and administrative 12,682 12,741 27,019 25,228
Systems development and programming costs 6,565 5,578 12,459 10,088
Amortization of intangible assets 13,267 10,178 26,816 20,484
Depreciation 3,242 2,726 6,460 5,552
Total costs and operating expenses 504,977 349,500 988,612 678,987
Operating income 20,029 13,932 45,306 35,515
Other income (expense):
Interest expense and bank fees (8,860 ) (7,037 ) (30,712 ) (12,189 )
Other, net (25 ) 161 78 234
Income before provision for income taxes 11,144 7,056 14,672 23,560
Provision for income taxes 4,923 2,713 6,911 8,680
Net income $6,221 $4,343 $7,761 $14,880
Net income per share:
Basic $0.09 $0.09 $0.13 $0.30
Diluted $0.09 $0.08 $0.12 $0.28
Weighted average shares:
Basic 69,053,403 10,898,957 42,914,458 10,834,724
Diluted 72,658,822 15,303,439 46,028,300 14,874,720

See accompanying notes.
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TriNet Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income $6,221 $4,343 $7,761 $14,880
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 3 (59 ) 20 (54 )
Unrealized gains on interest rate cap – 34 – 21
Foreign currency translation adjustments 43 (28 ) 1 (39 )
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 46 (53 ) 21 (72 )
Comprehensive income $6,267 $4,290 $7,782 $14,808

See accompanying notes.
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TriNet Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2014 2013

Operating activities
Net income $7,761 $14,880
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by  operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 39,070 26,143
Deferred income taxes 2,276 5,933
Stock-based compensation 5,070 2,865
Excess tax benefit from equity incentive plan activity (3,029 ) (1,876 )
Accretion of workers compensation and leases fair value adjustment (695 ) (768 )
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash 10,520 (979 )
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,960 ) (1,571 )
Workers compensation receivables (14,737 ) (414 )
Other assets 4,871 1,874
Accounts payable 3,405 (157 )
Income tax payable/receivable (6,461 ) 3,062
Other current liabilities (753 ) 2,792
Other liabilities 11,745 1,659
Worksite employee related assets 108,158 (37,161 )
Worksite employee related liabilities (109,584) 44,272
Net cash provided by operating activities 53,657 60,554
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale and maturity of debt securities – 500
Purchase of debt securities (16,789 ) (6,752 )
Purchase of property and equipment (8,709 ) (4,653 )
Net cash used in investing activities (25,498 ) (10,905 )
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 218,613 –
Proceeds from issuance of common stock on exercised options 631 1,296
Excess tax benefit from equity incentive plan activity 3,029 1,876
Borrowings under notes payable – 150,000
Repayment of notes payable (243,025) (4,854 )
Payment of debt issuance costs – (2,639 )
Payments of special dividend – (52 )
Repayments under capital leases (188 ) (458 )
Repurchase of common stock (1,288 ) (6,063 )
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (22,228 ) 139,106
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1 (39 )
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,932 188,716
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Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 94,356 63,749
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $100,288 $252,465

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $23,407 $6,804
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds 11,067 (721 )
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities
Payable for purchase of property and equipment 3,970 62

See accompanying notes.
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TriNet Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

TriNet Group, Inc. (the Company or TriNet), a Delaware corporation incorporated in January 2000, provides a
comprehensive human resources solution for small to medium-sized businesses. The Company’s solution includes
payroll processing, human capital consulting, employment law compliance and employee benefits, including health
insurance, retirement plans and workers compensation insurance.

The Company provides its services through co-employment relationships with its customers, under which the
Company and its customers each take responsibility for certain portions of the employer-employee relationship for
worksite employees (WSEs). The Company is the employer of record for most administrative and regulatory
purposes, including the following: (i) compensation through wages and salaries; (ii) employer payroll-related taxes
payment; (iii) employee payroll-related taxes withholding and payment; (iv) employee benefit programs including
health and life insurance, and others; and (v) workers compensation coverage.

Initial Public Offering

In March 2014, the Company completed its initial public offering (IPO) in which the Company issued and sold
15,000,000 shares of common stock at a public offering price of $16.00 per share. In addition, another 2,250,000
shares were sold by certain selling stockholders pursuant to the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares.  The
Company received net proceeds of approximately $217.6 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions of $16.8 million and offering expenses of $5.6 million. The Company did not receive any proceeds from
the sale by the selling stockholders.  Upon the closing of the IPO, all shares of the Company’s then-outstanding
preferred stock were converted into an aggregate of 38,065,708 shares of common stock.

Segment Information

The Company operates in one reportable segment in accordance with ASC 280. All of the Company’s service revenues
are generated from external customers. Less than 1% of revenues are generated outside of the United States of
America (U.S.). Substantially all of the Company’s long-lived assets are located in the U.S.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) regarding interim financial
reporting. Certain information and note disclosures normally included in the financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. Therefore, these
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
included in the Company’s prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act of 1933
with the SEC on March 27, 2014. There have been no changes to the Company’s significant accounting policies
described in the prospectus that have had a material impact on our consolidated financial statements and related notes.
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All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated balance sheets present the current assets and current liabilities directly
related to the processing of human resources transactions as WSE-related assets and WSE-related liabilities,
respectively. WSE-related assets are comprised of cash and investments restricted for current workers compensation
claim payments, payroll funds collected, accounts receivable, unbilled service revenues, and refundable or prepaid
amounts related to the Company-sponsored workers compensation and health plan programs. WSE-related liabilities
are comprised of customer prepayments, wages and payroll taxes accrued and payable, and liabilities related to the
Company-sponsored workers compensation and health plan programs resulting from workers compensation case
reserves, premium amounts due to providers for enrolled employees, and workers compensation and health reserves
that are expected to be disbursed within the next 12 months.

The unaudited interim financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the annual financial statements
and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary
for fair presentation. The results of the six months ended June 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results to
be expected for the year ending December 31, 2014.

7
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Seasonality

Historically, the Company has experienced its highest monthly addition of WSEs, as well as its highest monthly levels
of client attrition, in the month of January, primarily because clients that change their payroll service providers tend to
do so at the beginning of a calendar year. In addition, the Company experiences higher levels of client attrition in
connection with renewals of the health insurance it provides for its WSEs, in the event that such renewals result in
increased premiums that it passes on to its clients. The Company has also historically experienced higher insurance
claim volumes in the second and third quarters of a fiscal year than in the first and fourth quarters of a fiscal year, as
WSEs typically access their health care providers more often in the second and third quarters of a fiscal year, which
has negatively impacted the Company’s insurance costs in these quarters. These historical trends may change, and
other seasonal trends may develop that make it more difficult for the Company to manage its business.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. These estimates include, but are not limited to,
allowances for accounts receivable, workers compensation related assets and liabilities, health plan assets and
liabilities, recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets, income taxes, stock-based compensation and other
contingent liabilities. Such estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
Company management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2014-12—Compensation-Stock
Compensation, which requires that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the
requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. ASU 2014-12 is effective for annual reporting periods,
and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. The
amendments may be applied prospectively to all awards granted or modified after the effective date or retrospectively
to all awards with performance targets that are outstanding as of the beginning of the earliest annual period presented.
The Company does not expect this guidance to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements. The
Company expects to adopt this guidance in 2016.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09—Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which will replace most
existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard provides
a five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is recognized. ASU 2014-09 is effective for
annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption
is not permitted. The amendments may be applied retrospectively or as a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date
of adoption. The Company expects to adopt this guidance in 2017. The Company has not yet selected a method of
adoption and is currently evaluating the effect that the amendments will have on the consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11—Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating
Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists, which requires that an unrecognized tax
benefit, or portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, be presented as a reduction of a deferred tax asset for a net
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. If an applicable deferred tax asset is not
available or a company does not expect to use the applicable deferred tax asset, the unrecognized tax benefit should be
presented as a liability in the financial statements and should not be combined with an unrelated deferred tax asset.
ASU 2013-11 is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2013. The amendments should be applied prospectively to all unrecognized tax benefits that exist at the
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effective date, however retrospective application is permitted. The Company adopted this guidance in 2014. The
adoption of ASU 2013-11 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 2. WORKSITE EMPLOYEE-RELATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following schedule presents the components of the Company’s WSE-related assets and WSE-related liabilities (in
thousands):

June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

Worksite employee-related assets:
Restricted cash $65,297 $ 19,154
Restricted investment 12,276 2,317
Payroll funds collected 291,715 490,058
Unbilled revenue, net of advance collection of $34,685 and $54,159 at June 30, 2014

     and December 31, 2013, respectively 255,974 200,641
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $231 and $865 at

     June 30, 2014 and December 31,2013, respectively 9,817 10,450
Prepaid health plan expenses 5,594 7,584
Refundable health plan premiums 265 17,601
Refundable workers compensation premiums 16,565 20,834
Prepaid workers compensation expenses 2,720 1,414
Other payroll assets 4,056 2,384
Total worksite employee-related assets $664,279 $ 772,437

Worksite employee-related liabilities:
Unbilled wages accrual $283,005 $ 243,640
Payroll taxes payable 199,760 358,285
Health benefits payable 81,798 67,132
Customer prepayments 36,282 51,902
Workers compensation payable 34,979 23,453
Other payroll deductions 22,216 23,212
Total worksite employee-related liabilities $658,040 $ 767,624

NOTE 3. WORKERS COMPENSATION

The Company has agreements with various insurance carriers to provide workers compensation insurance coverage
for worksite employees. Insurance carriers are responsible for administrating and paying claims. The Company is
responsible for reimbursing each carrier up to a deductible limit per occurrence.

The following summarizes the activities in liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expenses (in thousands):
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For the
six
months
ended
June 30,

For the
year ended
December
31,

2014 2013

Liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment at beginning of period $58,610 $ 53,900
Plans acquired through business combinations – 481
Incurred related to:
Current year 25,798 26,401
Prior years (685 ) (3,319 )
Total incurred 25,113 23,082
Paid related to:
Current year (3,289 ) (8,055 )
Prior years (4,774 ) (10,798 )
Total paid (8,063 ) (18,853 )
Liability for unpaid claims and claims adjustment at end of period 75,660 58,610
Other premiums and collateral liabilities 15,572 10,152
Total workers compensation liabilities at end of period $91,232 $ 68,762
Current portion included in worksite employer-related liability 34,979 23,453
Long term portion $56,253 $ 45,309

9
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Under the terms of its agreements with its workers compensation insurance carriers, the Company collects and holds
premiums in restricted accounts pending claims payments by the claims administrator. As of June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, such restricted amounts of $50.3 million and $21.5 million, respectively, are presented as
restricted cash and restricted investment within WSE-related assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
In addition, the Company invests premium collateral in excess of short term claim obligations in certain longer term
securities. While it is the intention of the Company to reinvest maturing securities, periodically certain securities will
be classified as short term to the extent the Company does not intend to reinvest the proceeds upon maturity. At June
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, $43.5 million and $37.0 million, respectively, are presented as restricted long-term
investments.

NOTE 4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company’s noncurrent restricted cash and investments include $43.1 million of available-for-sale marketable
securities and $0.4 million of cash collateral at June 30, 2014. The Company’s restricted investments within
WSE-related assets include $10.0 million of available-for-sale marketable securities and $2.3 million of certificates of
deposit as of June 30, 2014. The available-for-sale marketable securities as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013
consist of the following (in thousands):

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair
Value

June 30, 2014
U.S. treasuries $ 52,566 $ 62 $ (12 ) $ 52,616
Mutual funds 500 9 – 509
Total investments $ 53,066 $ 71 $ (12 ) $ 53,125

December 31, 2013:
U.S. treasuries $ 35,900 $ 38 $ (20 ) $ 35,918
Mutual funds 500 8 – 508
Total investments $ 36,400 $ 46 $ (20 ) $ 36,426

There were no realized gains or losses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. As of June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013, the contractual maturities of the U.S. treasuries were two to three years.

As of June 30, 2014, certain of the Company’s U.S. treasuries were in unrealized loss position principally due to
changes in interest rates and credit spreads. No U.S. treasuries were in an unrealized loss position for more than 12
months as of either June 30, 2014 or December 31, 2013. In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, the Company
considers whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond
rating agencies have occurred, and industry analysts’ reports. The fair value of these securities in an unrealized loss
position represented 39% of the total fair value of all securities available for sale and their unrealized loss was $0.01
million as of June 30, 2014. As the Company has the ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the
foreseeable future as classified as available for sale, no decline was deemed to be other-than-temporary.
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Fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should
be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability.

As a basis for considering such assumptions, the Company uses a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the
inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

·Level I—observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets
·Level II—inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly
·Level III—unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which requires the Company to develop its
own assumptions
This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data when available and to minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when determining fair value. On a recurring basis, the Company measures its financial assets at
fair value.

10
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The following table summarizes the Company’s financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (in
thousands):

Total

Fair
Value Level I

Level
II

Level
III

June 30, 2014
Certificate of deposit $2,317 $2,317 $ – $ –
U.S. treasuries 52,616 52,616 – –
Mutual funds 509 509 – –
Interest rate cap 5 – 5 –
Total $55,447 $55,442 $ 5 $ –
December 31, 2013:
Certificates of deposit $2,858 $2,858 $ – $ –
U.S. treasuries 35,918 35,918 – –
Mutual funds 508 508 – –
Interest rate cap 47 – 47 –
Total $39,331 $39,284 $ 47 $ –

There were no transfers between Level I and Level II assets for the three months ended June 30, 2014 or the year
ended December 31, 2013.

As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, certificate of deposit consisted of certificates of deposit held by
domestic financial institutions, which are presented as restricted investments within WSE-related assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The book value of the Company’s financial instruments not measured at fair value, including cash, restricted cash,
WSE-related assets and liabilities, line of credit and accrued corporate wages, approximates fair value due to the
relatively short maturity, cash repayments or market interest rates of such instruments. The fair value of such financial
instruments, other than cash and restricted cash, is determined using the income approach based on the present value
of estimated future cash flows. The fair value of all of these instruments would be categorized as Level II of the fair
value hierarchy, with the exception of cash and cash equivalents, which would be categorized as Level I.

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the carrying value of our notes payable of $575.4 million and $818.4
million, respectively, approximated fair value. The estimate fair values of our notes payable are considered a Level II
valuation in the hierarchy for fair value measurement and are based on a cash flow model discounted at market
interest rates that considers the underlying risks of unsecured debt.

NOTE 5. NOTES PAYABLE AND BORROWINGS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

The following schedule summarizes the components of the Company’s notes payable and borrowings under capital
leases balances (in thousands):
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June 30, December 31,
2014 2013

Notes payable under credit facility $575,400 $ 818,425
Capital leases 311 452
Less current portion (6,061 ) (6,669 )

$569,650 $ 812,208

In August 2013, the Company, as guarantor, its subsidiary TriNet HR Corporation, as borrower, and certain of its
other subsidiaries as subsidiary guarantors entered into two senior secured credit facilities:

·a $705.0 million first lien credit facility with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent; and
·a $190.0 million second lien credit facility with Wilmington Trust, National Association, as administrative agent.
The credit facilities are secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets and the assets of the borrower and of the
subsidiary guarantors, other than specifically excluded assets.

The first lien credit facility provides for a five-year revolving credit facility of $75.0 million, three-year first lien
tranche B-1 term loan of $175.0 million and seven-year first lien tranche B-2 term loan of $455.0 million. A second
lien credit facility provides for seven-year-and-six-month term loan of $190.0 million. All first lien and second lien
term loans were fully drawn in August 2013. The

11
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$75.0 million revolving credit facility includes capacity for a $30.0 million letter of credit facility and a $10.0 million
swingline facility. The total unused portion of the revolving credit facility was $59.5 million as of June 30, 2014. The
proceeds of the first and second lien credit facilities were used to repay approximately $448.3 million of indebtedness
outstanding under the Company’s previous credit facility, declare a special dividend, provide cash collateral to
guarantee a letter of credit and pay transaction costs. In connection with the credit facilities, the Company incurred
$23.1 million of debt issuance costs, which were deferred and are being amortized over the term of the credit facilities.

In March 2014, the proceeds from the IPO were used to fully repay the $190.0 million second lien credit facility,
which resulted in a prepayment premium of $3.8 million, and to repay $25.0 million of the first lien tranche B-1 term
loan. Additionally, the remaining balance of the loan fees associated with the second lien credit facility and a portion
of the loan fees associated with the first lien credit facility were fully amortized in March 2014 for a charge of $5.0
million. In May 2014, the Company repaid $25.0 million of the first lien tranche B-1 term loan. As a result, a portion
of the loan fees associated with the first lien credit facility were fully amortized in May 2014 for a charge of $0.5
million.

The credit facilities contain customary representations and warranties and customary affirmative and negative
covenants applicable to us and our subsidiaries, including, among other things, restrictions on indebtedness, liens,
investments, mergers, dispositions, prepayment of other indebtedness, and dividends and other distributions. Under
the revolving credit facility, so long as there are any outstanding revolving loans and/or outstanding letters of credit in
excess of $15.0 million other than letters of credit that have been cash collateralized, we are required to comply with a
financial covenant that requires us and our subsidiaries to maintain a maximum first lien leverage ratio at 5.25 to 1.00
on a consolidated basis as of June 30, 2014. The Company was in compliance with the restrictive covenants under the
credit facilities at June 30, 2014. The company amended and restated the credit facility in July 2014 as discussed in
Note 11.

NOTE 6. CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

On June 7, 2005, the Company issued 5,391,441 shares of Series G convertible preferred stock (Series G) at $11.00
per share for an aggregate cash purchase price of $59.3 million. The Company recorded the issuance of Series G at
$59.1 million, net of issuance costs of $0.2 million. On June 1, 2009, the Company issued 4,124,986 shares of Series
H convertible preferred stock (Series H) at $16.69 per share for an aggregate cash purchase price of $68.8 million. The
Company recorded the issuance of Series H at $63.8 million, net of issuance costs of $5.0 million. Upon the issuance
of Series H, certain terms related to Series G were amended. In March 2014, upon completion of the Company’s IPO,
all of the outstanding shares of Series H and Series G were converted into 38,065,708 shares of common stock.

NOTE 7: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Equity-Based Incentive Plans

In 2000, the Company established the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2000 Plan), which provided for granting
incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options, bonus awards and restricted stock awards to eligible employees,
directors, and consultants of the Company. In December 2009, the Board of Directors approved the 2009 Equity
Incentive Plan (the 2009 Plan) as the successor to and continuation of the 2000 Plan. As of the 2009 Plan effective
date, remaining shares available for issuance under the 2000 Plan were cancelled and became available for issuance
under the 2009 Plan. No additional stock awards will be granted under the 2000 Plan. The 2009 Plan provides for the
grant of the following awards to eligible employees, directors, and consultants: incentive stock options, nonstatutory
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, performance stock
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awards, performance cash awards, and other stock awards. Incentive stock options may only be granted to employees.
Nonemployee directors are eligible to receive nonstatutory stock options automatically at designated intervals over
their period of continuous service on the Board. In February 2014, the Board approved an amendment to the 2009
Plan authorizing an additional 3,000,000 shares available for grant. The amended 2009 Plan also provides that the
number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2009 Plan will increase on January 1 of each year for a period of up
to five years by 4.5% of the total number of shares of capital stock outstanding on December 31 of the preceding
calendar year, which will begin on January 1, 2015 and continue through January 1, 2019.

The exercise price per share of all incentive stock options granted under the 2000 Plan and the 2009 Plan must be at
least equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant as determined by the Board of Directors. Options
issued to recipients other than nonemployee directors generally vest over four years with a one year cliff and monthly
thereafter, and have a maximum contractual term of 10 years. Options issued to members of the Board of Directors are
issued with varying vesting schedules. Incentive stock options granted at 110% of the fair market value to
stockholders who have greater than 10% ownership have a maximum term of five years.

The Company also has granted restricted stock units to members of the Board of Directors and certain executives.
These restricted stock units represent rights to receive shares of the Company’s common stock on satisfaction of
applicable vesting conditions. The fair value of restricted stock units is equal to the fair value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. The

12
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restricted stock units vest at a rate of 25% at the end of the first year and then pro rata monthly thereafter over the
remaining vesting term of three or two years, as applicable.

Activity under the 2000 Plan and the 2009 Plan for the six months ended June 30, 2014 is summarized as follows:

Shares
Available
for Grant

Balance at December 31, 2013 2,004,464
Authorized 3,000,000
Granted (2,508,500)
Forfeited 292,676
Expired 6,580
Balance at June 30, 2014 2,795,220

The following table summarizes stock option activity under the Company’s equity-based plans for the six months
ended June 30, 2014:

Number

of Shares

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Weighted-

Average

Remaining

Contractual

Term

(Years)

Aggregate

Intrinsic

Value

(in
thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2013 6,281,148 $ 1.74 8.55 $ 53,373
Granted 2,508,500 11.48
Exercised (762,010 ) 0.83
Forfeited (264,676 ) 4.69
Expired (6,580 ) 0.50
Balance at June 30, 2014 7,756,382 $ 4.88 8.60 $ 148,864

Exercisable at June 30, 2014 1,735,542 $ 0.86 7.52 $ 40,285

Vested and expected to vest at June 30, 2014 7,145,265 $ 4.71 8.56 $ 138,319

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stock options granted in each of the three months ended June 30, 2014
and June 30, 2013 was $12.46 and $3.60 per share, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stock
options granted in each of the six months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was $6.33 and $3.50 per share,
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respectively. The total fair value of options vested for the three months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013was
$1.3 million and $0.8 million, respectively. The total fair value of options vested for the six months ended June 30,
2014 and June 30, 2013 was $4.6 million and $2.5 million, respectively.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised for the three months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was $3.8
million and $6.5 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised for the six months ended June 30,
2014 and June 30, 2013 was $10.0 million and $7.2 million, respectively. Cash received from options exercised
during the three months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was $0.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively. Cash
received from options exercised during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 was $0.6 million and
$1.3 million, respectively. The exercise price of all options granted was equal to the fair value of the common stock on
the date of grant.

As of June 30, 2014, unrecognized compensation expense, net of forfeitures, associated with nonvested options
outstanding was $24.6 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.02 years.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, there were no grants or vesting of restricted stock units.  For the
three and six months ended June 30, 2014, 28,000 restricted stock units were forfeited. The total grant date fair value
of restricted stock units vested in the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $0.0 million and $0.1 million,
respectively. As of June 30, 2014, unrecognized compensation expense, net of forfeitures, associated with the
nonvested restricted stock units outstanding was $0.1 million, and is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 3.01 years.

Stock Split

On March 7, 2014, the Company’s board of directors and stockholders approved and effected an amendment to the
amended and restated certificate of incorporation providing for a 2-for-1 stock split of the outstanding common stock.
All of the share numbers,

13
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share prices, and exercise prices have been adjusted within these financial statements, on a retroactive basis, to reflect
this 2-for-1stock split.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company adopted the 2014 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) in February 2014, which became effective on
March 26, 2014. The ESPP was approved with a reserve of 1.1 million shares of common stock for future issuance
under various terms provided for in the ESPP, which will automatically increase on January 1 of each year from 2015
through 2024 by the lesser of 1% of the total number of shares outstanding on December 31 of the preceding calendar
year or 1,800,000 shares. We commenced our first purchase period under the ESPP on March 26, 2014 with the
purchase price at the lesser of 85% of the fair market value of the common stock on the offering date and 85% of the
fair market value of the common stock on the applicable purchase date.  Offering periods will be six months in
duration and will end on or about May 15 and November 15 of each year, with the exception of the initial offering
period which commenced on March 26, 2014 and that ends on November 14, 2014. Employees may contribute a
minimum of 1% and a maximum of 15% of their earnings.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense of $5.1 million and $2.9 million was recognized for the six months ended June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. An income tax benefit of $1.4 million and $0.8 million was recognized relating to tax
deductible stock-based compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
actual tax benefit realized from stock options exercised was $3.8 million and $2.7 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Three
Months
Ended June
30,

Six Months
Ended June
30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Expected term (in years) 5.85 6.08 6.04 6.04
Expected volatility 58.3% 45.1% 58.3% 45.3%
Risk-free interest rate 1.81% 1.02% 1.80% 1.12%
Expected dividend yield 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 %

NOTE 8: EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic net income per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net income attributable
to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period
and participating convertible preferred stock that were outstanding prior to the IPO. Diluted net income per share is
computed by giving effect to all potential shares of common stock, including shares issuable upon the conversion of
our convertible preferred stock that were outstanding prior to the IPO, shares issuable upon the exercise of outstanding
stock options, and stock related to unvested restricted stock unit awards to the extent dilutive.
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The following table sets forth the computation of the Company’s basic and diluted net income per share attributable to
common stock (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Numerator (basic)
Net income $6,221 $4,343 $7,761 $14,880
Less net income allocated to participating securities – (3,377 ) (2,366 ) (11,583)
Net income attributable to common stock $6,221 $966 $5,395 $3,297
Denominator (basic)
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding 69,053 10,899 42,914 10,835
Basic EPS $0.09 $0.09 $0.13 $0.30

Numerator (diluted)
Net income $6,221 $4,343 $7,761 $14,880
Less net income allocated to participating securities – (3,098 ) (2,253 ) (10,699)
Net income attributable to common stock $6,221 $1,245 $5,508 $4,181
Denominator (diluted)
Weighted average shares of common stock 69,053 10,899 42,914 10,835
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock units 3,605 4,404 3,114 4,040
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding 72,659 15,303 46,028 14,875
Diluted EPS $0.09 $0.08 $0.12 $0.28

Common stock equivalents excluded from income per diluted share

   because of their anti-dilutive effect 143 653 827 1,655

NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES

The Company is subject to taxation in the United States and Canada. However, business is conducted primarily in the
United States. The effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate primarily due to state taxes, tax credits and changes
in uncertain tax positions. The Company makes estimates and judgments about its future taxable income that are
based on assumptions that are consistent with the Company’s plans and estimates. Should the actual amounts differ
from these estimates, the amount of the valuation allowance could be materially affected.

Income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation
allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.
Changes in valuation allowances are reflected as a component of provision for income taxes.

The Company’s effective tax rate (ETR) was 44.2% and 38.4% for the three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The Company’s ETR was 47.1% and 36.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The increase is primarily due to non-deductible stock-based compensation and for the revaluation of
deferred taxes, based on a regulatory state tax change enacted during the three months ended March 31, 2014.   The
remainder of the increase is primarily due to the expiration of the federal research and development tax credit in 2014,
as well as a release of uncertain tax positions recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2013
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The Company has not been subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax examinations by tax authorities in
material jurisdictions for tax years beginning prior to January 1, 2009.  However, there are outstanding Notices of
Proposed Assessment disallowing employment tax credits totaling $10.5 million in connection with the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) examination of Gevity HR, Inc. and Subsidiaries, which was acquired by TriNet on June 1,
2009.  While Appeals has denied the credits, and the Company plans to exhaust all administrative efforts to resolve
this issue, it is likely that the matter will ultimately be resolved through litigation.  With regard to these employment
tax credits, the Company believes it is more likely than not that the Company will prevail.  Therefore, no reserve has
been recognized related to this matter.
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NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The Company leases office facilities, including its headquarters and other facilities, and equipment under
non-cancelable operating leases. The Company also leases certain software and furniture, fixtures, and equipment
under capital leases. The lease agreements generally provide for rental payments on a graduated basis and for options
to renew, which could increase future minimum lease payments if exercised. The Company recognizes rent expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease period and accrues for rent expense incurred but not paid. Rent expense for the
three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $2.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively. Rent expense for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $5.7 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

Operating Covenants

To meet various states’ licensing requirements and maintain accreditation by Employer Services Assurance
Corporation, the Company is subject to various minimum working capital and net worth requirements. As of June 30,
2014, the Company believes it has fully complied in all material respects with all applicable state regulations
regarding minimum net worth, working capital and all other financial and legal requirements. Further, the Company
has maintained positive working capital throughout the period covered by the financial statements.

Contingencies

The Company may from time to time become involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of
business, including suits by its clients. The unfavorable resolution of any such matter could have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Due to the nature of the Company’s relationship with its WSEs, the Company could be subject to liability for federal
and state law violations even if the Company does not participate in such violations. While the Company’s agreements
with its clients contain indemnification provisions related to the conduct of its clients, the Company historically has
not encountered situations requiring enforcement of these indemnification provisions.

The Company has been named as a defendant in various class action lawsuits arising from the nature of the Company’s
relationship with its WSEs. At this stage of the lawsuits, management believes an unfavorable outcome to the
Company is not probable. There are significant uncertainties involved in any class action litigation. Management is
unable to estimate a possible loss or range of loss for these class action lawsuits.

NOTE 11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2014 Credit Facility

On July 9, 2014, the Company amended and restated its first lien credit facility pursuant to an amended and restated
first lien credit agreement (the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement).The Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement provides for: (i) $375 million principal amount of “tranche A term loans,” (ii) $200 million principal amount
of “tranche B term loans,” and (iii) a revolving credit facility of $75 million. The proceeds of the tranche A term loans
were used to refinance in part the tranche B-2 term loans outstanding under the original first lien credit facility. The
proceeds of the tranche B term loans were used to (i) refinance the remaining tranche B-2 term loans outstanding
under the original first lien credit facility, (ii) refinance other amounts outstanding under the original first lien credit
facility and (iii) pay fees and expenses related thereto. The revolving credit facility replaced the revolving credit
facility under the original first lien credit facility.
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The tranche A term loans and the revolving credit facility will mature on July 9, 2019. The tranche B term loans will
mature on July 9, 2017. Loans under the revolving credit facility are expected to be used for working capital and other
general corporate purposes.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and customary
affirmative and negative covenants applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries, including, among other things,
restrictions on indebtedness, liens, investments, mergers, dispositions, prepayment of other indebtedness, and
dividends and other distributions. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement also contains financial covenants that
require the Company to maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of at least 3.50 to 1.00, beginning
with the fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2014, and a maximum total leverage ratio, currently at 5.00 to 1.00.

16
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and
our Prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 27, 2014.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements are often
identified by the use of words such as, but not limited to, “anticipate,” “believe,” “can,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “may,” “plan,” “project,” “seek,” “should,” “strategy,” “target,” “will,” “would” and similar expressions or variations intended to
identify forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance, but are based on
management’s expectations as of the date of this report and assumptions that are inherently subject to uncertainties,
risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. Forward-looking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements to be
materially different from any future results, performance or achievements. Important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to, those identified below and those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” included under Part II, Item 1A
below. All information provided in this report is as of the date of this report and the company undertakes no duty to
update this information except as required by law.

Overview

TriNet is a leading provider of a comprehensive human resources solution for small to medium-sized businesses, or
SMBs. We enhance business productivity by enabling our clients to outsource their HR function to one strategic
partner and allowing them to focus on operating and growing their core businesses. Our HR solution includes services
such as payroll processing, human capital consulting, employment law compliance and employee benefits, including
health insurance, retirement plans and workers compensation insurance. Our services are delivered by our expert team
of HR professionals and enabled by our proprietary, cloud-based technology platform, which allows our clients and
their employees to efficiently conduct their HR transactions anytime and anywhere. We believe we are a leader in the
industry due to our size, our presence in the United States and Canada and the number of clients and employees that
we serve.

We utilize a co-employment model pursuant to which both we and our clients become employers of our clients’
employees, which we refer to as worksite employees, or WSEs. This model affords us a close and embedded
relationship with our clients and their employees. Under the co-employment model, employment-related liabilities are
contractually allocated between us and our clients. We assume responsibility for, and manage the risks associated
with, each clients’ employee payroll obligations, including the liability for payment of salaries and wages to each client
employee, the payment of payroll taxes and, at the client’s option, responsibility for providing group health, welfare,
workers compensation and retirement benefits to such individuals. Unlike a payroll service provider, we issue each
WSE a payroll check drawn on our bank accounts and contract with insurance carriers to provide health and workers
compensation insurance to WSEs under TriNet’s name.

We serve thousands of clients in specific industry vertical markets, including technology, life sciences, property
management, professional services, banking and financial services, retail, manufacturing and hospitality services, as
well as non-profit entities. As of June 30, 2014, we served over 9,000 clients in all 50 states, the District of Columbia
and Canada and co-employed approximately 259,000 WSEs.
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Our total revenues consist of professional service revenues and insurance service revenues. For the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 16% and 17% of our total revenues, respectively, consisted of professional
service revenues, and 84% and 83% of our total revenues, respectively, consisted of insurance service revenues. We
earn professional service revenues by processing HR transactions, such as payroll and employment tax withholding,
and providing labor and benefit law compliance services, on behalf of our clients. We earn insurance service revenues
by providing risk-based, third-party plans to our clients, primarily employee health benefit plans and workers
compensation insurance.

For professional service revenues, we recognize as revenues the fees we earn for processing HR transactions, which
fees do not include the payroll that is paid to us by the client and paid out to WSEs or remitted as taxes. We recognize
as insurance service revenues all insurance-related billings and administrative fees collected from clients and withheld
from WSEs for risk-based insurance plans provided through third-party insurance carriers, primarily employee health
insurance and workers compensation insurance. We in turn pay premiums to third-party insurance carriers for these
insurance benefits, as well as reimburse them for claim payments within our insurance deductible layer. These
premiums and reimbursements are classified as insurance costs on our statements of operations. To augment our
financial information prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, we use
internally a non-GAAP financial measure, Net Insurance Service Revenues, which consists of insurance service
revenues less insurance costs. We also use a measure of total non-GAAP revenue, or Net Service Revenues, which is
the sum of
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professional service revenues and Net Insurance Service Revenues. For the three months ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, 66% and 65% of our Net Service Revenues, respectively, consisted of professional service revenues and 34%
and 35% of our Net Service Revenues, respectively, consisted of Net Insurance Service Revenues. For the six months
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 65% and 63% of our Net Service Revenues, respectively, consisted of professional
service revenues and 35% and 37% of our Net Service Revenues, respectively, consisted of Net Insurance Service
Revenues.

We sell our services primarily through our direct sales force, which consists of sales representatives who focus on
serving clients in specific industry vertical markets. For the three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, our sales and
marketing expenses were $35.0 million and $25.4 million, respectively, or 7% and 7% of our total revenues and 28%
and 27% of our Net Service Revenues, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, our sales and
marketing expenses were $66.9 million and $48.0 million, respectively, or 6% and 7% of our total revenues and 26%
and 25% of our Net Service Revenues, respectively.

We have made significant investments in our proprietary, cloud-based technology platform, including implementing
client information and management software to provide our clients with enhanced features and functionality with
which to conduct their HR transactions, manage their employees and analyze employee benefits data. For the three
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, our systems development and programming costs were $6.6 million and $5.6
million, respectively, or 1% and 2% of our total revenues and 5% and 6% of our Net Service Revenues, respectively.
For the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, our systems development and programming costs were $12.5
million and $10.1 million, respectively, or 1% and 1% of our total revenues and 5% and 5% of our Net Service
Revenues, respectively.

Strategic Acquisitions

We operate in a highly fragmented industry and have completed numerous strategic acquisitions over the course of the
past decade. We intend to continue to pursue strategic acquisitions that will enable us to add new clients and
employees to our existing business and offer our clients and their employees more comprehensive and attractive
services. Our operations could be adversely impacted if our strategic acquisitions are not integrated effectively.
Because many of the companies we have acquired to date were focused on specific industries, our acquisitions have
allowed us to expand our vertical service offerings into areas such as financial services, property management and
food services, hospitality and manufacturing in which we did not previously have a significant presence. In addition,
we have acquired sales representatives with experience in these vertical markets. Our acquisitions have provided us
with additional clients and WSEs to allow us to continue to leverage our operations over a larger client base. These
acquisitions have resulted in increased revenues and costs, as described below in our results of operations. We expect
to continue to pursue strategic acquisitions.

Key Operating Metrics

We regularly review certain key operating metrics to evaluate growth trends, measure our performance and make
strategic decisions. Our key operating metrics as of and for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 were as follows:

Three Months Ended

June 30,

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Net Insurance Service Revenues (in thousands) $42,551 $33,135 $87,431 $71,062
Net Service Revenues (in thousands) $124,811 $94,215 $252,566 $191,373
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Total WSEs 258,985 197,458
Total Sales Representatives 388 298

Total WSEs

We define Total WSEs at the end of a given fiscal period as the total number of WSEs paid in the last calendar month
of the fiscal period. We believe that comparing our Total WSEs at the end of a fiscal period to that of prior periods is
an indicator of our success in growing our business, both organically and through the integration of acquired
businesses, and retaining clients, and that our Total WSEs paid in the last calendar month of the fiscal period is a
leading indicator of our anticipated revenues for future fiscal periods.

Total Sales Representatives

Our direct sales force consists of sales representatives who focus on serving clients in specific industry vertical
markets. We define Total Sales Representatives at the end of a given fiscal period as the total number of our direct
sales force employees at that date. We believe that comparing our Total Sales Representatives at the end of a fiscal
period to our Total Sales Representatives at the end of a prior fiscal period is an indicator of our success in growing
our business, and that our Total Sales Representatives at the end of recent fiscal periods is a key indicator of our
ability to increase our revenues in the following fiscal periods.
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Net Insurance Service Revenues and Net Service Revenues

We define Net Insurance Service Revenues as insurance service revenues less insurance costs. We define Net Service
Revenues as the sum of professional service revenues and Net Insurance Service Revenues. Our total revenues on a
GAAP basis represent the total amount invoiced by us to our clients, net of direct pass-through costs such as payroll
and payroll tax payments, for the services we provide to our clients. Our insurance costs include the premiums we pay
to insurance carriers for the health and workers compensation insurance coverage provided to our clients and WSEs
and the reimbursements we pay to the insurance carriers for claim payments within our insurance deductible layer. We
act principally as the service provider to add value in the execution and procurement of these services to our clients.
Net Insurance Service Revenues is the primary indicator of our ability to source, add value and offer benefit services
to WSEs through third-party insurance carriers, and is considered by management to be a key performance measure.
We believe that Net Service Revenues is also a key performance measure as it provides a useful measure of total
revenues for the two main components of our revenues calculated on a consistent basis. In addition, management
believes measuring operating costs as a function of Net Service Revenues provides a useful metric, as we believe it
enables better evaluation of the performance of our business.

Non-GAAP Financial Results

We use Net Insurance Service Revenues, Net Service Revenues, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income to
provide an additional view of our operational performance. Net Insurance Service Revenues, Net Service Revenues,
Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income are financial measures that are not prepared in accordance with GAAP.
We define Net Insurance Service Revenues as insurance service revenues less insurance costs, which include the
premiums we pay to insurance carriers for the health and workers compensation insurance coverage provided to our
clients and WSEs and the reimbursements we pay to the insurance carriers for claim payments within our insurance
deductible layer. We define Net Service Revenues as the sum of professional service revenues and Net Insurance
Service Revenues. We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income, excluding the effects of our income tax provision,
interest expense, depreciation, amortization of intangible assets and stock-based compensation expense. We define
Adjusted Net Income as net income, excluding the effects of stock-based compensation, amortization of intangible
assets, non-cash interest expense and the income tax effect of these pre-tax adjustments at our effective tax rate. For
the six months ended June 30, 2014, the effective tax rate is adjusted to 39.5% to exclude income tax on
non-deductible stock-based compensation and discrete items including the cumulative effect of state law changes.
Non-cash interest expense represents amortization and write-off of our debt issuance costs and, for the six months
ended June 30, 2014, a debt prepayment premium.

We believe that the use of Net Insurance Service Revenues provides useful information as it presents a measure of
revenues from our provision of insurance services to our clients that eliminates the cost of insurance. We believe that
Net Service Revenues provides a useful measure of total revenues for the two main components of our revenues
calculated on a consistent basis. We believe that the use of Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income provides
additional period-to-period comparisons and analysis of trends in our business, as they exclude certain one-time and
non-cash expenses. We believe that Net Insurance Service Revenues, Net Service Revenues, Adjusted EBITDA and
Adjusted Net Income are useful for our stockholders and board of directors by helping them to identify trends in our
business and understand how our management evaluates our business. We use Net Insurance Service Revenues, Net
Service Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA to monitor and evaluate our operating results and trends on an ongoing basis
and internally for operating, budgeting and financial planning purposes, in addition to allocating our resources to
enhance the financial performance of our business and evaluating the effectiveness of our business strategies. We also
use Net Service Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA in determining the incentive compensation for management.

Net Insurance Service Revenues, Net Service Revenues, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income are not
prepared in accordance with, and should not be considered in isolation of, or as an alternative to, measurements
required by GAAP. In addition, these non-GAAP measures are not based on any comprehensive set of accounting
rules or principles. As non-GAAP measures, Net Insurance Service Revenues, Net Service Revenues, Adjusted
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EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income have limitations in that they do not reflect all of the amounts associated with our
results of operations as determined in accordance with GAAP. In particular:

·Net Insurance Service Revenues and Net Service Revenues are reduced by the insurance costs that we pay to the
insurance carriers;
·Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or
principal payments on our debt;
·Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the amounts we paid in taxes or other components of our tax provision;
·Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures or future requirements for capital expenditures or
contractual commitments;
·Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital
needs;
·Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income do not reflect the non-cash component of employee compensation;
19
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·Although depreciation and amortization of intangible assets are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and
amortized often will have to be replaced in the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect any cash requirements
for such replacements; and
·Other companies in our industry may calculate –these measures or similar measures differently than we do, limiting
their usefulness as a comparative measure.
Because of these limitations, you should consider Net Insurance Service Revenues, Net Service Revenues, Adjusted
EBITDA and Adjusted Net Income alongside other financial performance measures, including total revenues, net
income and our financial results presented in accordance with GAAP.

The table below sets forth a reconciliation of GAAP insurance service revenues to Net Insurance Service Revenues:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Insurance service revenues $442,746 $302,352 $868,783 $594,191
Less:  Insurance costs 400,195 269,217 781,352 523,129
Net Insurance Service Revenues $42,551 $33,135 $87,431 $71,062

The table below sets forth a reconciliation of GAAP total revenues to Net Service Revenues:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Total revenues $525,006 $363,432 $1,033,918 $714,502
Less:  Insurance costs 400,195 269,217 781,352 523,129
Net Services Revenues $124,811 $94,215 $252,566 $191,373

The table below sets forth a reconciliation of GAAP net income to Adjusted EBITDA:

Three Months
Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Net income $6,221 $4,343 $7,761 $14,880
Provision for income taxes 4,923 2,713 6,911 8,680
Stock-based compensation 2,923 1,505 5,070 2,865
Interest expense and bank fees 8,860 7,037 30,712 12,189
Depreciation 3,242 2,726 6,460 5,552
Amortization of intangible assets 13,267 10,178 26,816 20,484
Adjusted EBITDA $39,436 $28,502 $83,730 $64,650

Edgar Filing: TRINET GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

37



20

Edgar Filing: TRINET GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

38



The table below sets forth a reconciliation of GAAP net income to Adjusted Net Income:

Three Months
Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Net income $6,221 $4,343 $7,761 $14,880
Effective income tax rate adjustment 521 - 1,116 -
Stock-based compensation 2,923 1,505 5,070 2,865
Amortization of intangible assets 13,267 10,178 26,816 20,484
Non-cash interest expense 1,380 684 7,486 1,297
Debt prepayment premium - - 3,800 -
Income tax impact of pre-tax adjustments at 39.5% (6,940 ) (4,658 ) (17,053) (9,282 )
Adjusted Net Income $17,372 $12,052 $34,996 $30,244

Impact of Health Care Reform

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Heath Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, which
we refer to collectively as the Act, entail sweeping health care reforms with staggered effective dates from 2010
through 2018, and many provisions of the Act require the issuance of additional guidance from the U.S. Departments
of Labor and Health and Human Services, the IRS and U.S. states. Beginning in 2014, a number of key provisions of
the Act take effect, including the establishment of state insurance exchanges, insurance market reforms, “pay or play”
penalties on applicable large employers and the imposition and assessment of excise taxes on the health insurance
industry and reinsurance taxes on insurers and third-party administrators. Collectively, these items have the potential
to significantly change the insurance marketplace for employers and how employers offer or provide insurance to
employees.

We are not yet able to determine the impacts to our business, and to our clients, resulting from the Act. In future
periods, the Act may result in increased costs to us and our clients and could affect our ability to attract and retain
clients. Additionally, we may be limited or delayed in our ability to increase service fees to offset any associated
potential increased costs resulting from compliance with the Act. Furthermore, the uncertainty surrounding the terms
and application of the Act may delay or inhibit the decisions of potential clients to outsource their HR needs. As a
result, these changes could have a negative impact on our operating results.

Seasonality

Historically, we have experienced our highest monthly addition of WSEs, as well as our highest monthly levels of
client attrition, in the month of January, primarily because clients that change their payroll service providers tend to do
so at the beginning of a calendar year. In addition, we experience higher levels of client attrition in connection with
renewals of the health insurance we provide for our WSEs, in the event that such renewals result in increased
premiums that we pass on to our clients. We have also historically experienced higher insurance claim volumes in the
second and third quarters of a fiscal year than in the first and fourth quarters of a fiscal year, as WSEs typically access
their health care providers more often in the second and third quarters of a fiscal year, which has negatively impacted
our insurance costs in these quarters. These historical trends may change, and other seasonal trends may develop that
make it more difficult for us to manage our business.

Basis of Presentation and Key Components of Our Results of Operations
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Total Revenues

Our total revenues consist of professional service revenues and insurance service revenues.

We earn professional service revenues by processing HR transactions, such as payroll and employment tax
withholding, payment to WSEs, and labor and benefit law compliance, on behalf of our clients. Our clients pay us
these fees based on either a fixed fee per WSE per month or per transaction, or a percentage of the WSE’s payroll cost,
pursuant to written professional services agreements that are generally cancelable by us or our clients upon 30 days’
prior written notice. We also earn professional service revenues by providing strategic HR services to our clients, such
as talent acquisition, performance management and time and expense reporting services. Our clients pay us
professional service fees for these services based on separate written agreements.

We earn insurance service revenues by providing risk-based, third-party plans to our clients, primarily employee
health benefit plans and workers compensation insurance. Insurance service revenues consist of insurance-related
billings and administrative fees. We recognize as insurance service revenues insurance-related billings and
administrative fees collected from clients and withheld from WSEs for risk-based insurance plans provided through
third-party insurance carriers, primarily employee health insurance and
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workers compensation insurance. We in turn pay premiums to third-party insurance carriers for these insurance
benefits, as well as reimburse them for claim payments within our insurance deductible layer. These premiums and
reimbursements are classified as insurance costs on our statements of operations.

Our clients pay us administrative fees, typically based on a percentage of insurance-related amounts, collected from
clients and withheld from WSEs, primarily in exchange for our administration of employee health benefit plans.

Insurance Costs

Insurance costs include the premiums we pay to the insurance carriers for the health and workers compensation
insurance coverage provided to the clients and WSEs and the reimbursements we pay to the insurance carriers for
claim payments made to the WSEs within the insurance deductible layer.

Our insurance costs are, in part, a function of the type and terms of agreements that we enter into with the insurance
carriers that provide fully-insured coverage for our WSEs. Our future premiums under these, or ensuing, policies will
be influenced by the WSE claims activity in prior periods. The remainder of the health insurance policies and all of
the workers compensation insurance policies that we provide to our clients are policies with respect to which we agree
to reimburse our carriers for any claims that they pay within our deductible layer. Under these policies, WSEs file
claims with the carriers, which are responsible for paying the claims up to the maximum coverage under the policies.
The carriers then seek reimbursement from us up to our deductible per incident for workers compensation claims, or
up to a cap for health insurance claims in accordance with the terms of the underlying health insurance policies. In no
event are we liable to pay the claims directly to WSEs. As we evaluate the claims experience for each fiscal period,
we adjust, as we deem necessary, our workers compensation and health benefits reserves, and this in turn has a
corresponding impact on our insurance costs. As a result, our insurance costs fluctuate from period to period
depending on the number and severity of the claims incurred by our WSEs. We expect our insurance costs to continue
to increase in absolute dollars on an annual basis for the foreseeable future due to expected growth in WSEs.

Cost of Providing Services

Cost of providing services consists primarily of costs incurred by us associated with direct customer support, such as
payroll and benefits processing, professional HR consultants, employee liability insurance and costs associated with
defending clients in employment-related legal claims, benefits and risk management, postage and shipping expenses
and consulting expenses. We expect our cost of providing services to continue to increase in absolute dollars on an
annual basis for the foreseeable future due to expected growth in WSEs, partially offset by improved efficiencies,
although these expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of our total revenues from period to period depending on the
timing of those expenses.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, commissions and related variable compensation expenses,
commission payments to partners and the cost of marketing programs. Marketing programs consist of advertising, lead
generation, marketing events, corporate communications, brand building and product marketing activities, as well as
various incentivized partnership and referral programs. We expect our sales and marketing expenses to continue to
increase, both in absolute dollars and as a percentage of our total revenues on an annual basis, for the foreseeable
future as we expand our sales force and our other sales and marketing efforts to build our brand, although these
expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of our total revenues from period to period depending on the timing of those
expenses.

General and Administrative Expenses
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General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation-related expenses, legal and other professional
services fees and other general corporate expenses. We expect our general and administrative expenses to continue to
increase in absolute dollars for the foreseeable future due to increases in our legal and financial compliance costs in
connection with being a newly public company, although these expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of our total
revenues from period to period depending on the timing of those expenses.

Systems Development and Programming Costs

Systems development and programming costs consist primarily of compensation-related expenses for our employees
and contractors dedicated to systems development and programming, as well as fees that we pay to third-party
consulting firms. We expect our systems development and programming costs to continue to increase modestly in
absolute dollars for the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in and improve our technology platform. However,
over time, we expect our systems development and programming costs to remain relatively consistent as a percentage
of our total revenues on an annual basis, although these costs may fluctuate as a percentage of our total revenues from
period to period depending on when we incur those costs.
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Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets represents costs associated with an acquired company’s developed technologies,
client lists, trade names and contractual agreements. We amortize these intangibles over their respective estimated
useful lives using either the straight-line method or the accelerated method.

Depreciation

Depreciation consists primarily of amortization of the cost of software and furniture, fixtures and equipment.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) consists primarily of interest expense under our credit facility and capital leases, debt
issuance cost amortization, and a prepayment premium.

Provision for Income Taxes

We are subject to taxation in the United States and Canada. We conduct our business primarily in the United States,
and all of our clients are U.S. employers. However, we provide services to certain clients with employees in Canada.
The percentage of our total revenues attributable to WSEs in Canada was less than 1% in 2013 and for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014. Our effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate primarily due to state taxes, tax
credits, non-deductible charges and changes in uncertain tax positions. We make estimates and judgments about our
future taxable income based on assumptions that are consistent with our plans and estimates. Should the actual
amounts differ from our estimates, the amount of our valuation allowance could be materially affected.

Income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation
allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized.
Changes in valuation allowances are reflected as a component of provision for income taxes.

Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates and Judgments

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
or GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. These estimates include, but are not limited to,
allowances for accounts receivable, workers compensation related assets and liabilities, health plan assets and
liabilities, recoverability of goodwill and other intangible assets, income taxes, stock-based compensation and other
contingent liabilities. Such estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
Company management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ significantly
from our estimates. To the extent that there are material differences between these estimates and actual results, our
future financial statement presentation, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows will be affected.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes included in the Company’s prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the
Securities Act of 1933 with the SEC on March 27, 2014. There have been no material changes to our critical
accounting policies described in the prospectus for the year ended December 31, 2013.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Edgar Filing: TRINET GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

43



In June 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2014-12—Compensation-Stock
Compensation, which requires that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the
requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. ASU 2014-12 is effective for annual reporting periods,
and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015. Early adoption is permitted. The
amendments may be applied prospectively to all awards granted or modified after the effective date or retrospectively
to all awards with performance targets that are outstanding as of the beginning of the earliest annual period presented.
We do not expect this guidance to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. We expect to adopt
this guidance in 2016.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09—Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which will replace most
existing revenue recognition guidance under GAAP. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard provides
a five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is recognized. ASU 2014-09 is effective for
annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
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December 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permitted. The amendments may be applied retrospectively or as a
cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. We expect to adopt this guidance in 2017. We have not yet
selected a method of adoption and are currently evaluating the effect that the amendments will have on our
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11—Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating
Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists, which requires that an unrecognized tax
benefit, or portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, be presented as a reduction of a deferred tax asset for a net
operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. If an applicable deferred tax asset is not
available or a company does not expect to use the applicable deferred tax asset, the unrecognized tax benefit should be
presented as a liability in the financial statements and should not be combined with an unrelated deferred tax asset.
ASU 2013-11 is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2013. The amendments should be applied prospectively to all unrecognized tax benefits that exist at the
effective date, however retrospective application is permitted. We adopted this guidance in 2014. The adoption of
ASU 2013-11 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Results of Operations

The following tables set forth our results of operations for the periods presented and as a percentage of our total
revenues and Net Service Revenues for those periods. Period-to-period comparisons of our financial results are not
necessarily indicative of financial results to be achieved in future periods.

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Consolidated Statement of Operations: (in thousands)
Professional service revenues $82,260 $61,080 $165,135 $120,311
Insurance service revenues 442,746 302,352 868,783 594,191
Total revenues 525,006 363,432 1,033,918 714,502
Costs and operating expenses:
Insurance costs 400,195 269,217 781,352 523,129
Cost of providing services (exclusive of depreciation and

     amortization of intangible assets) (1) 34,034 23,671 67,677 46,486
Sales and marketing (1) 34,992 25,389 66,829 48,020
General and administrative (1) 12,682 12,741 27,019 25,228
Systems development and programming costs (1) 6,565 5,578 12,459 10,088
Amortization of intangible assets 13,267 10,178 26,816 20,484
Depreciation 3,242 2,726 6,460 5,552
Total costs and operating expenses 504,977 349,500 988,612 678,987
Operating income 20,029 13,932 45,306 35,515
Other income (expense):
Interest expense and bank fees (8,860 ) (7,037 ) (30,712 ) (12,189 )
Other, net (25 ) 161 78 234
Income before provision for income taxes 11,144 7,056 14,672 23,560
Provision for income taxes 4,923 2,713 6,911 8,680
Net income $6,221 $4,343 $7,761 $14,880

__________________________________________
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(1)Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows:

Three Months
Ended

Six Months
Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Cost of providing services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization of
intangible assets) $801 $269 $1,255 $516
Sales and marketing 774 359 1,291 632
General and administrative 1,045 767 2,053 1,520
Systems development and programming costs 303 110 471 197
Total stock-based compensation expense $2,923 $1,505 $5,070 $2,865
24
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Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Percentage of total revenues:
Professional service revenues 16 % 17 % 16 % 17 %
Insurance service revenues 84 % 83 % 84 % 83 %
Total revenues 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %
Costs and operating expenses:
Insurance costs 76 % 74 % 76 % 73 %
Cost of providing services (exclusive of depreciation and

     amortization of intangible assets) 6 % 7 % 7 % 7 %
Sales and marketing 7 % 7 % 6 % 7 %
General and administrative 2 % 4 % 3 % 4 %
Systems development and programming costs 1 % 2 % 1 % 1 %
Amortization of intangible assets 3 % 3 % 3 % 3 %
Depreciation 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %
Total costs and operating expenses 96 % 96 % 96 % 95 %
Operating income 4 % 4 % 4 % 5 %
Other income (expense):
Interest expense and bank fees (2 %) (2 %) (3 %) (2 %)
Other, net (0 %) 0 % 0 % 0 %
Income before provision for income taxes 2 % 2 % 1 % 3 %
Provision for income taxes 1 % 1 % 1 % 1 %
Net income 1 % 1 % 1 % 2 %

Three Months
Ended June 30,

Six Months
Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Percentage of Net Service Revenues:
Professional service revenues 66 % 65 % 65 % 63 %
Net Insurance Service Revenues 34 % 35 % 35 % 37 %
Net Service Revenues 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %
Other operating expenses:
Cost of providing services (exclusive of depreciation and
amortization of intangible assets) 27 % 25 % 27 % 24 %
Sales and marketing 28 % 27 % 26 % 25 %
General and administrative 10 % 14 % 11 % 13 %
Systems development and programming costs 5 % 6 % 5 % 5 %
Amortization of intangible assets 11 % 11 % 11 % 11 %
Depreciation 3 % 3 % 3 % 3 %
Total other operating expenses 84 % 85 % 82 % 81 %
Operating income 16 % 15 % 18 % 19 %
Other income (expense):
Interest expense and bank fees (7 %) (7 %) (12 %) (6 %)
Other, net (0 %) 0 % 0 % 0 %
Income before provision for income taxes 9 % 7 % 6 % 12 %
Provision for income taxes 4 % 3 % 3 % 5 %
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Net income 5 % 5 % 3 % 8 %
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Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Total Revenues

Three months ended Change Six months ended Change
June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Professional service revenues $82,260 $61,080 $21,180 35% $165,135 $120,311 $44,824 37%
Insurance service revenues 442,746 302,352 140,394 46% 868,783 594,191 274,592 46%
Total revenues $525,006 $363,432 $161,574 44% $1,033,918 $714,502 $319,416 45%

Key operating metrics:
   Total WSEs 258,985 197,458 61,527 31%
   Total Sales Representatives 388 298 90 30%

Total revenues increased by $161.6 million, or 44%, and $319.4 million, or 45%, for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the same period of prior year.  Professional service revenues and insurance
service revenues represented 16% and 84%, respectively, of total revenues for the three and six months ended June 30,
2014, compared to 17% and 83%, respectively, of total revenues in the same period of the prior year.  The increase in
total revenues was attributable to the significant growth of our Total WSEs and revenues from our acquisition of
Ambrose Employer Group, LLC, or Ambrose, in the third quarter of 2013, as further described below.

Professional service revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $21.2 million, or 35%, compared
to the same period of the prior year. The increase was mainly attributable to our increase in Total WSEs and our
acquisition of Ambrose in third quarter of 2013, which accounted for $8.5 million of professional service revenues
during the three months ended June 30, 2014.  

Professional service revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $44.8 million, or 37%, compared
to the same period of the prior year. The increase was mainly attributable to our increase in Total WSEs and our
acquisition of Ambrose in third quarter of 2013, which accounted for $15.4 million of professional service revenues
during the six months ended June 30, 2014.  In addition, we received a $2.3 million refund related to prior year payroll
taxes in the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Insurance service revenues increased by $140.4 million, or 46%, and by $274.6 million, or 46%, for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the same period of the prior year.  The increase was primarily
due to our increase in Total WSEs, and our acquisition of Ambrose, which accounted for $63.9 million and $130.4
million of insurance service revenues during the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively.

Total WSEs at June 30, 2014 increased by 61,527, or 31%, compared to Total WSEs at June 30, 2013, with
approximately 13,000 of such increase due to the Ambrose acquisition. Our Total Sales Representatives increased
from 298 at June 30, 2013 to 388 at June 30, 2014, 12 of which we acquired from Ambrose.

Insurance Costs

Three months ended Change Six months ended Change
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June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Insurance costs $400,195 $269,217 $130,978 49% $781,352 $523,129 $258,223 49%
Insurance costs increased $131.0 million, or 49%, for the three months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the same
period of the prior year, $59.0 million of which is due to our acquisition of Ambrose. The remaining increase resulted
from an increase in Total WSEs other than those acquired from Ambrose and a 2% increase in average insurance costs
per WSE other than those acquired from Ambrose.  

Insurance costs increased $258.2 million, or 49%, for the six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the same
period of the prior year, $118.6 million of which is due to our acquisition of Ambrose. The remaining increase
resulted from an increase in Total WSEs other than those acquired from Ambrose and a 2% increase in average
insurance costs per WSE other than those acquired from Ambrose.
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Net Insurance Service Revenues and Net Service Revenues

Three months ended Change Six months ended Change
June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Insurance service revenues $442,746 $302,352 $140,394 46% $868,783 $594,191 $274,592 46%
Less:  Insurance costs 400,195 269,217 130,978 49% 781,352 523,129 258,223 49%
Net Insurance Service Revenues $42,551 $33,135 $9,416 28% $87,431 $71,062 $16,369 23%

Three months ended Change Six months ended Change
June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Total revenues $525,006 $363,432 $161,574 44% $1,033,918 $714,502 $319,416 45%
Less:  Insurance costs 400,195 269,217 130,978 49% 781,352 523,129 258,223 49%
Net Service Revenues $124,811 $94,215 $30,596 32% $252,566 $191,373 $61,193 32%

For the reasons set forth above with respect to the increases in our insurance service revenues and total revenues, our
Net Insurance Service Revenues increased by $9.4 million, or 28%, and by $16.4 million, or 23% for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, as compared to the same period of the prior year. Similarly, our Net
Service Revenues increased by $30.6 million, or 32%, and by $61.2 million, or 32%, for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2014, respectively, as compared to the same period of the prior year.

Other Operating Expenses

Three months
ended Change Six months ended Change
June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Cost of providing services $34,034 $23,671 $10,363 44% $67,677 $46,486 $21,191 46%
Sales and marketing 34,992 25,389 9,603 38% 66,829 48,020 18,809 39%
General and administrative 12,682 12,741 (59 ) (0%) 27,019 25,228 1,791 7%
System development and
programming costs 6,565 5,578 987 18% 12,459 10,088 2,371 24%
Amortization of intangible assets 13,267 10,178 3,089 30% 26,816 20,484 6,332 31%
Depreciation 3,242 2,726 516 19% 6,460 5,552 908 16%
Total operating expenses $104,782 $80,283 $24,499 31% $207,260 $155,858 $51,402 33%

Cost of Providing Services

Edgar Filing: TRINET GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

51



Three months ended Change Six months ended Change
June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Compensation-related costs $24,924 $16,474 $8,450 51% $49,019 $32,873 $16,146 49%
Facilities 1,770 1,173 597 51% 3,381 2,384 997 42%
Information technology and
communication 2,022 1,943 79 4% 4,517 3,559 958 27%
Other expenses 5,318 4,081 1,237 30% 10,760 7,670 3,090 40%
Total cost of providing services $34,034 $23,671 $10,363 44% $67,677 $46,486 $21,191 46%

Cost of providing services for the three months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $10.4 million, or 44%, compared to
the same period of the prior year, due in part to our acquisition of Ambrose, which accounted for $2.9 million of the
increase. Compensation-related costs increased by $8.5 million due to increased headcount, including $2.1 million
from our acquisition of Ambrose. Facilities-related costs increased by $0.6 million due to our acquisition of
Ambrose.  The remainder of the increase was due to an increase in WSEs other than those that we acquired from
Ambrose.  Cost of providing services has decreased to 6% of total revenues in the three
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months ended June 30, 2014, from 7% of total revenues in the same period of the prior year.  Cost of providing
services increased to 27% of Net Service Revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2014 from 25% of Net Service
Revenues, in the same period of the prior year. The increase was due to costs associated with the integration of our
recently acquired subsidiaries.

Cost of providing services for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $21.2 million, or 46%, compared to
the same period of the prior year, due in part to our acquisition of Ambrose, which accounted for $4.9 million of the
increase. Compensation-related costs increased by $16.1 million due to increased headcount, including $4.0 million
from our acquisition of Ambrose. Facilities-related costs increased by $1.0 million due to our acquisition of
Ambrose.  The remainder of the increase was due to an increase in WSEs other than those that we acquired from
Ambrose.  Cost of providing services remained at 7% of total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2014
compared to the same period of the prior year. Cost of providing services has increased to 27% of Net Service
Revenues in the six months ended June 30, 2014, from 24% of Net Service Revenues in the same period of the prior
year.  The increase was due to costs associated with the integration of our recently acquired subsidiaries.

Sales and Marketing

Three months
ended Change Six months ended Change

June 30,
2014 vs.
2013 June 30,

2014 vs.
2013

2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Compensation-related costs $24,426 $17,261 $7,165 42% $47,720 $33,154 $14,566 44%
Marketing and advertising 4,678 3,729 949 25% 8,581 7,126 1,455 20%
Facilities 939 836 103 12% 1,713 1,669 44 3 %
Other expenses 4,949 3,563 1,386 39% 8,815 6,071 2,744 45%
Total sales and marketing $34,992 $25,389 $9,603 38% $66,829 $48,020 $18,809 39%

Sales and marketing expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $9.6 million, or 38%, compared
to the same period of the prior year. Of this increase, $7.2 million was due to compensation-related costs, including
$1.3 million from our acquisition of Ambrose and $5.9 million from our growth in direct sales channels, primarily the
addition of new sales representatives. Marketing and advertising expenses increased $0.9 million, or 25%, primarily
due to our acquisition of Ambrose.  Other expenses increased $1.4 million, or 39%, primarily due to increased sales
travel, meeting and conference activities, as well as other expenses associated with recruiting efforts and information
technology.  Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of total revenues remained unchanged at 7% in the three
months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.  As a percentage of Net Service Revenues, sales and marketing expenses
increased to 28% in the three months ended June 30, 2014, from 27% in the same period of the prior year, mainly due
to investment in growing our sales organization, which resulted in our sales and marketing expenses outpacing the
growth in Net Service Revenues.

Sales and marketing expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $18.8 million, or 39%, compared
to the same period of the prior year. Of this increase, $14.6 million was due to compensation-related costs, including
$2.9 million from our acquisition of Ambrose and $11.7 million from our growth in direct sales channels, primarily
the addition of new sales representatives. Marketing and advertising expenses increased $1.5 million, or 20%,
primarily due to our acquisition of Ambrose.  Other expenses increased $2.7 million, or 45%, primarily due to
increased sales travel, meeting and conference activities, as well as other expenses associated with recruiting efforts
and information technology.  Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of total revenues decreased to 6% in the
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six months ended June 30, 2014, from 7% in the same period of prior year.  As a percentage of Net Service Revenues,
sales and marketing expenses increased to 26% in the six months ended June 30, 2014, from 25% in the same period
of the prior year, mainly due to investment in growing our sales organization, which resulted in our sales and
marketing expenses outpacing the growth in Net Service Revenues.

General and Administrative

Three months
ended Change Six months ended Change

June 30,
2014 vs.
2013 June 30,

2014 vs.
2013

2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Compensation-related costs $8,212 $8,232 $(20 ) (0 %) $16,707 $16,103 $604 4 %
Legal and professional fees 1,133 1,632 (499) (31%) 3,066 3,590 (524 ) (15%)
Other expenses 3,337 2,877 460 16 % 7,246 5,535 1,711 31 %
Total general and administrative $12,682 $12,741 $(59 ) (0 %) $27,019 $25,228 $1,791 7 %
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General and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $0.1 million, or 0%,
compared to the same period of the prior year.  Compensation-related costs were flat compared to the same period of
the prior year.  Legal and professional fees decreased by $0.5, or 31%, as a result of lower costs incurred in relation to
employment and corporate matters. Other expenses increased $0.5 million, or 16%, primarily due to costs associated
with the integration of our recently acquired subsidiaries.  General and administrative expenses decreased to 2% of
total revenues, or 10% of Net Service Revenues, in the three months ended June 30, 2014, from 4% of total revenues,
or 14% of Net Service Revenues, in the same period of the prior year as a result of efficiencies realized subsequent to
our acquisitions.

General and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $1.8 million, or 7%,
compared to the same period of the prior year.  Compensation-related costs increased by $0.6 million, or 4%,
compared to the same period of the prior year, which was attributable to an increase in headcount primarily related to
our acquisition of Ambrose.  Legal and professional fees decreased by $0.5 million, or 15%, as a result of as a result
of lower costs incurred in relation to employment and corporate matters. Other expenses increased $1.7 million, or
31%, primarily due to costs associated with the integration of our recently acquired subsidiaries.  General and
administrative expenses decreased to 3% of total revenues, or 11% of Net Service Revenues, in the six months ended
June 30, 2014, from 4% of total revenues, or 13% of Net Service Revenues, in the same period of the prior year as a
result of an increase in revenues as well as efficiencies realized subsequent to our acquisitions.

Systems Development and Programming

Three months
ended Change Six months ended Change

June 30,
2014 vs.
2013 June 30,

2014 vs.
2013

2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Compensation-related costs $5,450 $4,238 $1,212 29 % $10,310 $7,552 $2,758 37 %
Other expenses 1,115 1,340 (225 ) (17%) 2,149 2,536 (387 ) (15%)
Total systems development and
programming costs $6,565 $5,578 $987 18 % $12,459 $10,088 $2,371 24 %

Our systems development and programming costs for the three months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $1.0 million,
or 18%, compared to the same period of the prior year. The increase was due to a $1.2 million increase in
compensation-related costs resulting from the increase in headcount including those we acquired from Ambrose, to
support and enhance our technology product delivery. Despite these increases, systems development and
programming costs decreased to 1% of total revenues, or 5% of Net Service Revenues, in the three months ended June
30, 2014, from 2% of total revenues, or 6% of Net Service Revenues, in the same period of the prior year as a result of
an increase in revenues.

Our systems development and programming costs for the six months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $2.4 million,
or 24%, compared to the same period of the prior year. Of this increase, $0.5 million was attributable to increased
headcount from our acquisition of Ambrose. The remaining increase was due to a $2.3 million increase in
compensation-related costs resulting from the increase in headcount, other than those we acquired from Ambrose, to
support and enhance our technology product delivery. Systems development and programming costs remained
unchanged at 1% of total revenues, or 5% of Net Service Revenues, in the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Amortization of Intangible Assets and Depreciation
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Three months
ended Change Six months ended Change
June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Amortization of intangible assets $13,267 $10,178 $3,089 30% $26,816 $20,484 $6,332 31%
Depreciation $3,242 $2,726 $516 19% $6,460 $5,552 $908 16%

Our amortization of intangible assets increased by $3.1 million, or 30%, and by $6.3 million, or 31%, for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the same period of the prior year. The increase was
primarily attributable to our acquisition of Ambrose. Depreciation expense increased by $0.5 million, or 19%, and by
$0.9 million, or 16%, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively, compared to the same period of
the prior year, primarily attributable to depreciation from our acquisition of Ambrose.
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Other Income (Expense)

Three months
ended Change Six months ended Change
June 30, 2014 vs. 2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013
2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Interest expense and bank fees $(8,860) $(7,037) $(1,823) 26% $(30,712) $(12,189) $(18,523) 152%

Other income (expense) was primarily the result of interest expense under our credit facilities. In October 2012, we
amended and restated our secured credit facility to provide for total borrowings of $350.0 million, which was
amended again in April 2013 to provide for total borrowings of $500.0 million. In August 2013, we entered into two
new senior secured credit facilities for total borrowings of $820.0 million to pay off our previous credit facilities and
pay a special dividend. In March 2014, the Company repaid $216.6 million of these facilities from its IPO
proceeds.  Interest expense increased in the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 due to a $5.0 million charge
related to the acceleration of loan fee amortization due to our refinancing activities, a $3.8 million prepayment
premium related to our partial repayment of the credit facilities during the period, and an increase in interest expense
resulting from the higher debt level.

Provision for Income Taxes

Three months
ended Change

Six months
ended Change

June 30,
2014 vs.
2013 June 30, 2014 vs. 2013

2014 2013 $ % 2014 2013 $ %
(in thousands, except percentages)

Provision for income taxes $4,923 $2,713 $2,210 81% $6,911 $8,680 $(1,769) (20%)
Effective tax rates 44.2 % 38.4 % 47.1 % 36.8 %

Our provision for income taxes for the three months ended June 30, 2014 increased by $2.2 million compared to the
same period of the prior year, primarily due to the increase in our pre-tax income. Our effective tax rate (ETR)
increased from 38.4% for the three months ended June 30, 2013 to 44.2% for the three months ended June 30, 2014,
primarily due to non-deductible stock-based compensation related to February 2014 stock option grants, and to the
implementation of an employee stock purchase plan which went into effect on March 26, 2014.  The remainder of the
increase is primarily due to the expiration of the federal research and development tax credit in 2014.

Our provision for income taxes for the six months ended June 30, 2014 decreased by $1.8 million compared to the
same period of the prior year, primarily due to a decrease in our pre-tax income. Our effective tax rate increased from
36.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2013 to 47.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2014, primarily due to
non-deductible stock-based compensation related to February 2014 stock option grants, and to the implementation of
an employee stock purchase plan which went into effect on March 26, 2014 and to a discrete tax charge of $0.5
million, for the revaluation of deferred taxes, based on a regulatory state tax change enacted during the three months
ended March 31, 2014.  The remainder of the increase is primarily due to the expiration of the federal research and
development tax credit in 2014, as well as a release of uncertain tax positions recognized for the three months ended
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March 31, 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity for operations is derived from cash provided by operating activities. We rely on cash
provided by operating activities to meet our short-term liquidity requirements, which primarily relate to the payment
of corporate payroll and other operating costs, and capital expenditures. Our credit facilities have been used to fund
acquisitions and dividends, and we have not relied on these facilities to provide liquidity for our operations. Our cash
flow related to WSE payroll and benefits is generally matched by advance collection from our clients. To minimize
the credit risk associated with remitting the payroll and associated taxes and benefits costs, we require clients to
prefund the payroll and related payroll taxes and benefits costs. To the extent this does not occur, our results of
operations and cash flow may be negatively impacted.

WSE-related liabilities can fluctuate significantly due to various factors, including the day of the week on which a
client payroll period ends, the existence of holidays at or immediately following a client payroll period-end and
various federal and state compliance calendars. We report the advance collection from our clients as payroll funds
collected within WSE-related assets on our balance sheet. Our cash and cash equivalents reported on our balance sheet
represent our corporate cash available to meet corporate liquidity requirements, capital spending and expansion plans,
potential acquisitions, debt service requirements and other corporate operating cash needs.
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Cash Flows

We generated positive cash flows from operating activities during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. We
also have the ability to generate cash through our financing arrangements under our credit facility to meet short-term
funding requirements related to WSE-related obligations. The following table shows our cash flows from operating
activities, investing activities and financing activities for the stated periods:

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in):
     Operating activities $53,657 $60,554
     Investing activities (25,498) (10,905 )
     Financing activities (22,228) 139,106
     Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 1 (39 )
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $5,932 $188,716

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $53.7 million and $60.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively. Historically, cash provided by operating activities has been affected by our net income,
adjusted for non-cash expense items (such as depreciation, amortization of intangible assets, deferred income taxes,
expense associated with stock-based compensation) and changes in working capital accounts. The fluctuation in our
working capital accounts was primarily driven by WSE-related assets and liabilities.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $25.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014, as compared to $10.9
million in the same period of the prior year. In the six months ended June 30, 2014, we invested $16.8 million in debt
securities compared to $6.8 million for the same period of 2013. Investments to purchase property and equipment
were $8.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to $4.7 million for the same period of 2013.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $22.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014, compared to $139.1
million in the same period of the prior year. Net cash provided by financing activities during the six months ended
June 30, 2014 was attributable to $219.2 million of net proceeds received from the issuance of common stock in our
IPO and exercise of stock options, offset by $243.0 million in loan repayments. Net cash provided by financing
activities during the six months ended June 30, 2013 was attributable to the borrowing of $150.0 million from our
credit facility in connection with our acquisition of Ambrose, partially offset by $6.1 million in common stock
repurchases and $4.9 million in loan repayments.

2014 Credit Facility

In August 2013, we, as guarantor, our subsidiary TriNet HR Corporation, as borrower, and certain of our other
subsidiaries as subsidiary guarantors entered into two senior secured credit facilities: (i) a $705.0 million first lien
credit facility with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and (ii) a $190.0 million second lien credit
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facility with Wilmington Trust, National Association, as administrative agent. Proceeds from our IPO were used to
fully repay the $190.0 million second lien credit facility, which resulted in a prepayment premium of $3.8 million, and
to repay $25.0 million of the first lien credit tranche B-1 term loan. Additionally, the remaining balance of the loan
fees associated with the second lien credit facility and a portion of the loan fees associated with the first lien credit
facility were fully amortized in March 2014 for a charge of $5.0 million. On July 9, 2014, we amended and restated
our first lien credit facility pursuant to an amended and restated first lien credit agreement, or the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement.

The amended and restated credit agreement provides for: (i) $375 million principal amount of “tranche A term loans,”
(ii) $200 million principal amount of “tranche B term loans,” and (iii) a revolving credit facility of $75 million, which
we refer to as the revolving credit facility. The proceeds of the tranche A term loans were used to refinance in part the
tranche B-2 term loans outstanding under the original first lien credit facility. The proceeds of the tranche B term
loans were used to (i) refinance the remaining tranche B-2 term loans outstanding under the original first lien credit
facility, (ii) refinance other amounts outstanding under the original first lien credit facility and (iii) pay fees and
expenses related thereto. The revolving credit facility replaced the revolving credit facility under the original first lien
credit facility.
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The tranche A term loans and the revolving credit facility will mature on July 9, 2019. The tranche B term loans will
mature on July 9, 2017. Loans under the revolving credit facility are expected to be used for working capital and other
general corporate purposes.

The tranche A term loans and loans under the revolving credit facility bear interest, at our option, at a rate equal to
either the LIBOR rate, plus an applicable margin equal to 2.75% per annum, or the prime lending rate, plus an
applicable margin equal to 1.75% per annum. The applicable margins for the tranche A term loans and loans under the
revolving credit facility are subject to reduction by 0.25% or 0.50%, or increase by 0.25% based upon our total
leverage ratio. The tranche B term loans bear interest, at our option, at a rate equal to either the LIBOR rate, plus an
applicable margin equal to 2.75% per annum or the prime lending rate, plus an applicable margin equal to 1.75% per
annum. We are required to pay a commitment fee of 0.50%, subject to decrease to 0.375% based on our total leverage
ratio, on the daily unused amount of the commitments under the revolving credit facility, as well as fronting fees and
other customary fees for letters of credit issued under the revolving credit facility.

We are permitted to make voluntary prepayments at any time without payment of a premium, except that a 1%
premium would apply to a repricing of the tranche B term loans effected on or prior to the six-month anniversary of
the effective date for the amendment and restatement of our credit facility. We are required to make mandatory
prepayments of term loans (without payment of a premium) with (i) net cash proceeds from issuances of debt (other
than certain permitted debt), (ii) net cash proceeds from certain non-ordinary course asset sales and casualty and
condemnation proceeds (subject to reinvestment rights and other exceptions), and (iii) beginning with the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2015, 50% of our excess cash flow (subject to decrease to (x) 25% if our total leverage ratio as
of the last day of such fiscal year is less than 3.75 to 1.0 and equal to or greater than 3.00 to 1.0, and (y) 0% if our total
leverage ratio as of the last day of such fiscal year is less than 3.00 to 1.0), provided that we may defer prepayments
based on excess cash flow to the extent such payments would result our GAAP working capital being less than $10
million (after giving effect to such prepayments).

The tranche A term loans will be paid in equal quarterly installments in an aggregate annual amount equal to:
(i) beginning on December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2016, 5% of the original principal amount thereof,
(ii) beginning on December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2018, 7.5% of the original principal amount thereof, and
(iii) beginning on December 31, 2018 to June 30, 2019, 10% of the original principal amount thereof with any
remaining balance payable on the final maturity date of the tranche A term loans. The tranche B term loans will be
paid in equal quarterly installments in an aggregate annual amount equal to 1% of the original principal amount
thereof, with any remaining balance payable on the final maturity date of the tranche B term loans.

Our credit facility contains customary representations and warranties and customary affirmative and negative
covenants applicable to us and our subsidiaries, including, among other things, restrictions on indebtedness, liens,
investments, mergers, dispositions, prepayment of other indebtedness, and dividends and other distributions. Our
credit facility also contains financial covenants that require us to maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage
ratio and a maximum total leverage ratio.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of June 30, 2014, and
the effect they are expected to have on our liquidity and capital resources (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Total

Less
than 1
year 1-3 years 3-5 years

More
than 5
years
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Long-term debt obligations $575,000 5,187 43,844 254,094 271,875
Interest on debt obligations 96,989 8,295 42,181 38,095 8,418
Workers compensation liabilities 102,689 20,165 28,589 15,221 38,714
Capital lease obligations 333 194 119 20 -
Operating lease obligations 27,242 5,333 14,010 4,677 3,222
Purchase obligations 3,243 2,917 326 - -
Uncertain tax positions 3,000 2,545 455 - -
     Total $808,496 $44,636 $129,524 $312,107 $322,229

Long-term debt obligations and interest on debt obligations reflect the terms of the amended and restated credit
agreement discussed above. The projected interest payments incorporate the forward LIBOR curve as of June 30,
2014.

Workers compensation liabilities represented in the table above are considered contractual obligations because they
represent the estimated costs of reimbursing the carriers for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance
with workers compensation insurance policies. Workers compensation liabilities include estimates for reported claims,
plus estimates for claims incurred but not reported, and estimates of certain expenses associated with processing and
settling the claims. These estimates are subject to
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significant uncertainty. The actual amount to be paid is not finally determined until we reach a settlement with the
insurance carrier. Final claim settlements may vary significantly from the present estimates, particularly because many
claims will not be settled until well into the future. In estimating the timing of future payments by year, we have
assumed that our historical payment patterns will continue. However, the actual timing of future payments could vary
materially from these estimates due to, among other things, changes in claim reporting and payment patterns and large
unanticipated settlements.

Our purchase obligations represented in the table above primarily consist of obligations for renewal premiums on
workers compensation policies, software licenses and maintenance, sales and marketing events and professional and
consulting fees. These are associated with agreements that we believe are enforceable and legally binding and that
specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum services to be used, fixed, minimum or variable price
provisions, and the approximate timing of the transaction. Obligations under contracts that we can cancel without a
significant penalty are not included in the table above. The table includes purchase obligations individually greater
than $100,000 and with a remaining term in excess of one year.

To support our growth and expansion, we may lease additional office space. Many of our operating lease agreements
provide us with the option to renew. Our future operating lease obligations would change if we exercised these options
and if we entered into additional operating lease agreements as we expand our operations.

In the normal course of business, we make representations and warranties that guarantee the performance of services
under service arrangements with clients. Historically, there has been no material losses related to such guarantees. In
addition, in connection with our initial public offering, we have entered into indemnification agreements with our
officers and directors, which require us to defend and, if necessary, indemnify these individuals for certain pending or
future legal claims as they relate to their services provided to us. Such indemnification obligations are not included in
the table above.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to certain market risks in the ordinary course of our business. These risks primarily include interest
rate sensitivities as follows.

We had cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, restricted investments, payroll funds collected, and interest bearing
receivable in connection with workers compensation premiums totaling $568.9 million at June 30, 2014. Included in
this amount were $55.4 million in time deposits and U.S. Treasuries. Such interest-earning instruments carry a degree
of interest rate risk. To date, fluctuations in interest income have not been significant. Fluctuations in the value of our
investment securities caused by a change in interest rates (gains or losses on the carrying value) are recorded in other
comprehensive income, and are realized only if we sell the underlying securities.  Our investments are made for
capital preservation purposes. An immediate increase or decrease in the interest rates in effect at either December 31,
2013 or June 30, 2014 of 100-basis points would not result in a material market value reduction or increase at such
date.

The cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, payroll funds collected and workers compensation receivable are held
for working capital purposes.  Our cash equivalents, payroll funds collected, workers compensation receivable and our
investments are subject to market risk due to changes in interest rates. Fixed rate securities may have their market
value adversely impacted due to a rise in interest rates, while floating rate securities may produce less income than
expected if interest rates fall. Due in part to these factors, our future investment income may fall short of expectation
due to changes in interest rates or we may suffer losses in principal if we are forced to sell securities that decline in
market value due to changes in interest rates. However, because we classify our debt securities as “available for sale,” no
gains or losses are recognized due to changes in interest rates unless such securities are sold prior to maturity or
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declines in fair value are determined to be other-than-temporary. Our fixed-income portfolio is subject to interest rate
risk.

We also had total outstanding indebtedness of $575.4 million as of June 30, 2014, of which $15.6 million is due
within 12 months. Amounts outstanding under our credit facility carry estimated variable interest rates ranging from
3.0% to 6.0% over the term of the facility.  As a result of our credit facility, we are exposed to changes in interest
rates. With an increase in interest rates in effect at June 30, 2014 of 100 basis points, our interest expense for 2014
through 2019 would be $119.6 million. On the other hand, with a decrease in interest rates in effect at June 30, 2014
of 100 basis points, our interest expense for 2014 through 2019 would be $74.4 million.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2014. The term “disclosure controls and
procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), means controls and
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other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in
the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that
it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including
its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2014, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Remediation Efforts on Previously Identified Material Weakness

In preparing and reviewing our consolidated financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30,
2013, and in connection with our restatement of previously issued consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2011, we and our independent registered public accounting firm identified a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of our financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weakness
identified related to our incorrectly recording a deferred tax asset in connection with our accounting for our
acquisition of Ambrose that should have been reported as goodwill as of September 30, 2013, and to incorrectly
recording a true-up to the income tax provision in 2011 related to the allocation of stock compensation between
qualified and nonqualified stock options that should have been identified and recorded in 2010. As a result, there were
adjustments required in connection with closing our books and records and preparing our consolidated financial
statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and a restatement was required for our consolidated
financial statements for the years ended 2010 and 2011.

In response to this material weakness, we have hired a Director of Income Tax Accounting, who reports directly to the
Chief Accounting Officer. We also will continue to engage external technical advisers to assist us with the evaluation
of complex tax issues and improve the processes, procedures and documentation standards relating to the preparation
of the income tax provision calculations.  We will continue to assess and develop our tax professionals in order to
ensure adequate technical and accounting expertise commensurate with our needs to properly consider and apply
GAAP for income taxes.

Our remediation efforts are continuing and we expect to make additional changes to our controls over income tax
reporting processes that we believe will strengthen our internal control. We have dedicated resources to the design,
implementation, documentation, and testing of our internal controls. We will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of
our internal control over accounting for income taxes and will continue to utilize external technical advisors to ensure
that our financial statements continue to be fairly stated in all material respects. Neither we nor our independent
registered public accounting firm has performed an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting during
any period in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In light of the material weakness that was
identified as a result of the limited procedures performed, we believe that it is possible that, had we and our
independent registered public accounting firm performed an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting
in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, additional material weaknesses or significant control
deficiencies may have been identified.

As we continue to evaluate and test improvements to our internal control over financial reporting, we may determine
to take additional measures to address control deficiencies or decide to modify certain of the remediation measures
described above. We expect that the material weakness will be remediated in 2014, although there can be no
assurances that our efforts will be effective. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer considered this
material weakness in evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2014, and determined that the
material weakness did not impact our disclosure controls and procedures for the period ended June 30, 2014.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation
required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2014
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
As described above, we are implementing changes to our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over
financial reporting to remediate the material weakness identified above.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired
control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints and that management is required to apply judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls
and procedures relative to their costs.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We may from time to time become involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of business,
including suits by our clients. The unfavorable resolution of any such matter could have a material effect on our
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Due to the nature of our relationship with our WSEs, we could be subject to liability for federal and state law
violations even if we do not participate in such violations. While our agreements with our clients contain
indemnification provisions related to the conduct of our clients, we historically have not encountered situations
requiring enforcement of these indemnification provisions.

We have been named as a defendant in various class action lawsuits arising from the nature of our relationship with
our WSEs. At this stage of the lawsuits, management believes an unfavorable outcome to the Company is not
probable. There are significant uncertainties involved in any class action litigation. Management is currently unable to
estimate a possible loss or range of loss for these class action lawsuits.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risks and
all of the other information contained in this report, including our consolidated financial statements and related notes.
If any of the following risks materialize, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially
and adversely affected. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose some or
all of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Our success depends on growth in market acceptance of the human resources outsourcing and related services we
provide.

Our success depends on the willingness of SMBs to outsource their HR function to a third-party service provider. We
estimate that fewer than 5% of U.S. employees of businesses with fewer than 500 employees are part of a
co-employment arrangement, in which all or some portion of the employer’s HR function was outsourced to a single
third-party provider such as TriNet. We believe that our growth opportunity is primarily a function of our ability to
penetrate the SMB market. Many companies have invested substantial personnel, infrastructure and financial
resources in their own internal HR organizations and therefore may be reluctant to switch to our solution. Companies
may not engage us for other reasons, including a desire to maintain control over all aspects of their HR activities, a
belief that they manage their HR activities more effectively using their internal administrative organizations,
perceptions about the expenses associated with our services, perceptions about whether our services comply with laws
and regulations applicable to them or their businesses, or other considerations that may not always be evident.
Additional concerns or considerations may also emerge in the future. We must address our potential clients’ concerns
and explain the benefits of our approach in order to convince them to change the way that they manage their HR
activities, particularly in parts of the United States where our company and solution are less well-known. If we are not
successful in addressing potential clients’ concerns and convincing companies that our solution can fulfill their HR
needs, then the market for our solution may not develop as we anticipate and our business may not grow.
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If we are unable to rapidly grow our sales force, we will not be able to grow our business at the rate that we anticipate,
which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In order to raise awareness of the benefits of our services and identify and acquire new clients, we must rapidly grow
our direct sales force, which consists of regional sales representatives who focus on serving clients in specific industry
vertical markets. Competition for skilled sales personnel is intense, and we cannot assure you that we will be
successful in attracting, training and retaining qualified sales personnel, or that our newly hired sales personnel will
function effectively, either individually or as a group. In addition, our newly hired sales personnel are typically not
productive for up to a year following their hiring. This results in increased near-term costs to us relative to the sales
contributions of these newly hired sales personnel. If we are unable to rapidly grow and effectively train our sales
force, our revenues likely will not increase at the rate that we anticipate, which could harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
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We are subject to client attrition.

We regularly experience significant client attrition due to a variety of factors, including increases in administrative
fees and insurance costs, disruption caused by the transition of WSEs we have gained through acquisition to our
technology platform, client business failure, competition and clients determining to bring HR administration in-house.
Our standard client service agreement can be cancelled by us or by the client without penalty with 30 days’ prior
written notice. Clients who intend to cease doing business with us often elect to do so effective as of the beginning of
a calendar year. As a result, in the first quarter of each year we experience our largest concentration of client attrition.
In addition, we experience higher levels of client attrition in connection with renewals of the health insurance we
provide for WSEs in the event that such renewals result in increased premiums that we pass on to our clients. If we
were to experience client attrition in excess of our projected annual attrition rate of approximately 20% of our
installed WSE base, as we did in 2010 and 2011, it could harm our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our acquisition strategy creates risks for our business.

We have completed numerous acquisitions of other businesses, and we expect that we will continue to grow through
acquisitions of other businesses, assets or technologies. We may fail to identify attractive acquisition candidates or we
may be unable to reach acceptable terms for future acquisitions. If we are unable to complete acquisitions in the
future, our ability to grow our business will be impaired.

We may pay for acquisitions by issuing additional shares of our common stock, which would dilute our stockholders,
or by issuing debt, which could include terms that restrict our ability to operate our business or pursue other
opportunities and subject us to meaningful debt service obligations. We may also use significant amounts of cash to
complete acquisitions. To the extent that we complete acquisitions in the future, we likely will incur future
depreciation and amortization expenses associated with the acquired assets. We may also record significant amounts
of intangible assets, including goodwill, which could become impaired in the future. Acquisitions involve numerous
other risks, including:

·difficulties integrating the operations, technologies, services and personnel of the acquired companies, including the
migration of WSEs from an acquired company’s technology platform to ours;
·challenges maintaining our internal standards, controls, procedures and policies;
·diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;
·over-valuation by us of acquired companies;
· litigation resulting from activities of the acquired company, including claims from terminated employees, customers,
former stockholders and other third parties;
· insufficient revenues to offset increased expenses associated with the acquisitions and unanticipated liabilities of the
acquired companies;
· insufficient indemnification or security from the selling parties for legal liabilities that we may assume in connection
with our acquisitions;
·entering markets in which we have no prior experience and may not succeed;
·risks associated with foreign acquisitions, such as communication and integration problems resulting from
geographic dispersion and language and cultural differences, compliance with foreign laws and regulations and
general economic or political conditions in other countries or regions;
·potential loss of key employees of the acquired companies; and
·impairment of relationships with clients and employees of the acquired companies or our clients and employees as a
result of the integration of acquired operations and new management personnel.
If we fail to integrate newly acquired businesses effectively, we might not achieve the growth, service enhancement or
operational efficiency objectives of the acquisitions, and our business, results of operations and financial condition
could be harmed.
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Unexpected changes in workers compensation and health insurance claims by worksite employees could harm our
business.

Our insurance costs are impacted significantly by our WSEs’ health and workers compensation insurance claims
experience. We establish reserves to provide for the estimated costs of reimbursing our workers compensation and
health insurance carriers for paying claims within the deductible layer in accordance with their insurance policies.
Estimating these reserves involves our consideration of a number of factors and requires significant judgment. If there
is an unexpected increase in the severity or frequency of claims, such as due to our WSEs generating additional claims
activity, or if we subsequently receive updated information indicating insurance claims were higher than previously
estimated and reported, our insurance costs could be higher in that period or subsequent
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periods as we adjust our reserves accordingly. In addition, we may be unable to increase our pricing to offset increases
in insurance costs on a timely basis. A number of factors affect claim activity levels, such as changes in general
economic conditions, proposed and enacted regulatory changes and disease outbreaks.

Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate as a result of numerous factors, many of which are outside of our
control.

Our quarterly results of operations are likely to fluctuate, and our results in some quarters may be below the
expectations of research analysts and our investors, which could cause the price of our common stock to decline.
Some of our significant expenses, such as insurance costs for our WSEs, rent expense and debt expense, may require
significant lead time to reduce. If we do not achieve our expected revenues targets, we may be unable to adjust our
costs quickly enough to offset any revenues shortfall, which could harm our results of operations. Some of the
important factors that may cause our revenues, results of operations and cash flows to fluctuate from quarter to quarter
include:

· the number of our new clients initiating service and the number of WSEs employed by each new client;
·our loss of existing clients;
·reduction in the number of WSEs at existing clients;
· the number and severity of health and workers compensation insurance claims by WSEs and the timing of claims
information provided by our insurance carriers;
· the timing of client payments and payment defaults by clients;
· the amount and timing of our operating expenses and capital expenditures;
·costs associated with our acquisitions of companies, assets and technologies;
·payments or drawdowns on our credit facilities, or any amendments to our obligations under our credit facilities;
·expenses we incur for geographic and service expansion;
·our regulatory compliance costs;
·changes to our credit ratings by rating agencies;
·changes in our effective tax rate;
·extraordinary expenses such as litigation or other dispute-related settlement payments; and
·the impact of new accounting pronouncements.
Many of the above factors are discussed in more detail elsewhere in this “Risk Factors” section and in the section titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”. Many of these factors are
outside our control, and the variability and unpredictability of these factors could cause us to fail to meet our
expectations for revenues or results of operations for a given period. In addition, the occurrence of one or more of
these factors might cause our results of operations to vary widely, which could lead to negative impacts on our
margins, short-term liquidity or ability to retain or attract key personnel, and could cause other unanticipated issues.
Accordingly, we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our revenues, results of operations and cash flows may
not be meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of our future performance.

Our business is subject to numerous state and federal laws, and uncertainty as to the application of these laws, or
adverse applications of these laws, as well as changes in applicable laws, could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are governed by numerous federal, state and local laws relating to labor, tax, benefits, insurance and
employment matters. We are a professional employer organization, and by entering into a co-employer relationship
with WSEs, we assume certain obligations, responsibilities and potential legal risks of an employer under these laws.
However, many of these laws (such as the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, or ERISA, and federal and
state employment tax laws) do not specifically address the obligations and responsibilities of a provider of outsourced
HR in a co-employer relationship, and the definition of employer under these laws is not uniform. In addition, many
states have not addressed the co-employer relationship for purposes of compliance with applicable state laws
governing the relationship between employers and employees and state insurance laws. There is even greater
uncertainty on the federal level, such as the application of immigration reform to a co-employer relationship, and tax
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credits for small businesses that utilize a co-employer relationship.

We are not able to predict whether broader federal or state regulation governing the co-employer relationship will be
implemented, or if it is, how it will affect us. Any adverse application or interpretation (in courts, agencies or
otherwise) of new or existing federal or state laws to the co-employer relationship with our WSEs and clients could
harm our business. If federal, state or local jurisdictions were to change their regulatory framework related to
outsourced HR, or introduce new laws governing our industry
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that were materially different from existing laws, those changes could reduce or eliminate the need for some of our
services, or could require that we make significant changes in our methods of doing business, which could increase
our cost of doing business. Changes in regulations could also affect the extent and type of benefits employers can or
must provide employees, the amount and type of taxes employers and employees are required to pay or the time
within which employers must remit taxes to the applicable authority. These changes could substantially decrease our
revenues and substantially increase our cost of doing business. If we fail to educate and assist our clients regarding
new or revised legislation that impacts them, our reputation could be harmed.

Although some states do not explicitly regulate professional employer organizations, 42 states have passed laws that
have licensing, certification or registration requirements applicable to professional employer organizations or
recognize the professional employer organization model, and other states may implement such requirements in the
future. Laws regulating professional employer organizations vary from state to state, but generally provide for
oversight of the fiscal responsibility of professional employer organizations, and in some cases codify and clarify the
co-employment relationship for processing unemployment claims, workers compensation and other purposes under
state law. We may be required to spend significant time and resources to satisfy licensing requirements or other
applicable regulations in some states, and we may not be able to satisfy these requirements or regulations in all states,
which could prohibit us from doing business in such states. In addition, we cannot assure you that we will be able to
renew our licenses in all states.

If we are not recognized as an employer of worksite employees under federal and state regulations, we and our clients
could be adversely impacted.

In order for WSEs to receive the full benefit of our benefits offerings, it is important that we act and qualify as an
employer of the WSEs under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or the Code, and ERISA. In addition, our status as
an employer is important for purposes of ERISA preemption of state laws. The definition of employer under various
laws is not uniform, and under both the Code and ERISA the term is defined in part by complex multi-factor tests
under common law. We believe that we qualify as an employer of our WSEs in the United States under both the Code
and ERISA, and we implement processes to protect and preserve this status. However, the U.S. Department of Labor
has issued guidance that certain entities in the HR outsourcing industry do not qualify as common law employers of
WSEs for ERISA purposes. If we were found not to be an employer under the Code, our WSEs may not receive the
favorable tax treatment for any plans intended to qualify under Section 401 of the Code, including our 401(k) plans
and cafeteria plans, which could have a material adverse effect on our business. If we were found not to be an
employer for ERISA purposes, our plans would not comply with ERISA, and fines and penalties could be imposed. In
addition, if we were found not to be an employer for ERISA purposes, we and our plans would not enjoy the full
preemption of state laws provided by ERISA and could be subject to varying state laws and regulations, including
laws governing multiple employer welfare arrangements, or MEWAs, as well as to claims based upon state laws.

We and our clients could be adversely impacted by health care reform.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Heath Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, which
we refer to collectively as the Act, entail sweeping health care reforms with staggered effective dates through 2018,
and many provisions of the Act require the issuance of additional guidance from the U.S. Departments of Labor and
Health and Human Services, the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, and U.S. states. Beginning in 2014, a number of
key provisions of the Act take effect, including the establishment of state insurance exchanges, insurance market
reforms, “pay or play” penalties on applicable large employers and the imposition and assessment of excise taxes on the
health insurance industry and reinsurance taxes on insurers and third-party administrators. Collectively, these items
have the potential to significantly change the insurance marketplace for employers and how employers offer or
provide insurance to employees.

As a co-employer of our clients’ WSEs, we assume or share many of the employer-related responsibilities and legal
risks and assist our clients in complying with many employment-related governmental regulations. Generally, the Act
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and subsequently issued guidance by the IRS and the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services have not
addressed, or in some instances are unclear, as to their application in the co-employment relationship. For example,
the Act provides for a small business tax credit for eligible companies offering health care coverage to employees. We
believe that these tax credits are available to our clients that meet the qualification requirements; however, the Act and
subsequently issued IRS guidance do not expressly address the issue of whether small business clients of a
professional employer organization may still qualify as small business eligible for such tax credits. As a result of this
uncertainty, we are not yet able to determine the impacts to our business, and to our clients, resulting from the Act. In
future periods, the changes may result in increased costs to us and our clients and could affect our ability to attract and
retain clients. Additionally, we may be limited or delayed in our ability to increase service fees to offset any
associated potential increased costs resulting from compliance with the Act. Furthermore, the uncertainty surrounding
the terms and application of the Act may delay or inhibit the decisions of potential clients to outsource their HR needs.
Any of these developments could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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We may have additional tax liabilities, which could harm our business, operating results, financial condition and
prospects.

Significant judgments and estimates are required in determining our provision for income taxes and other tax
liabilities. Our provision for income taxes, results of operations and cash flows may be impacted if any of our tax
positions are challenged and successfully disputed by the tax authorities. In determining the adequacy of our tax
provision, we assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes that could result if our tax positions were challenged by the
IRS and other tax authorities. The tax authorities in the United States regularly examine our income and other tax
returns. For example, in connection with an IRS examination of prior federal income tax returns filed by Gevity, a
company we acquired in 2009, we received a technical advice memorandum from the IRS taking the position that
approximately $10.1 million of tax credits taken by Gevity, and an additional approximately $2.0 million taken by us
after acquiring Gevity, should be reversed, which position we dispute. The ultimate outcome of these examinations
and tax disputes cannot be predicted with certainty. Should the IRS or other tax authorities assess additional taxes as a
result of examinations, we may be required to record charges to operations that could have a material impact on our
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Our business and operations have experienced rapid growth in recent periods, and if we are unable to effectively
manage this growth, our business and results of operations may suffer.

We have experienced rapid growth and have significantly expanded our operations in recent periods, which has placed
a strain on our management and our administrative, operational and financial infrastructure. Managing this growth
requires us to further refine our operational, financial and management controls and reporting systems and procedures.

Our ability to effectively manage any significant growth of our business will depend on a number of factors, including
our ability to do the following:

·effectively recruit, integrate, train and motivate a large number of new employees, including our direct sales force,
while retaining our existing employees, maintaining the beneficial aspects of our corporate culture and effectively
executing our business plan;
·satisfy our existing clients and identify and acquire new clients;
·enhance the breadth and quality of our services;
·continue to improve our operational, financial and management controls; and
·make sound business decisions in light of the scrutiny associated with operating as a public company.
These activities will require significant operating and capital expenditures and allocation of valuable management and
employee resources, and we expect that our growth will continue to place significant demands on our management
and on our operational and financial infrastructure.

Our future financial performance and our ability to execute on our business plan will depend, in part, on our ability to
effectively manage any future growth. We cannot assure you that we will be able to do so in an efficient or timely
manner, or at all. In particular, any failure to successfully implement systems enhancements and improvements will
likely negatively impact our ability to manage our expected growth, ensure uninterrupted operation of key business
systems and comply with the rules and regulations that are applicable to public companies. If we fail to manage our
growth effectively, our costs and expenses may increase more than we expect them to, which in turn could harm our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may not be able to sustain our revenue growth rate or profitability in the future.

While we have achieved profitability on an annual basis in each of the last two and four of the last five fiscal years, we
expect our operating expenses to increase substantially in the near term, particularly as we make significant
investments in our sales and marketing organization, expand our operations and infrastructure and enhance the breadth
and quality of our services. If our revenues do not increase to offset these increases in our operating expenses, we may
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not be profitable in future periods.

Moreover, you should not consider our historical revenue growth to be indicative of our future performance. As we
grow our business, our revenue growth rates may slow in future periods due to a number of reasons, which may
include slowing demand for our services, increasing competition, a decrease in the growth of our overall market, our
failure, for any reason, to continue to capitalize on growth opportunities, the maturation of our business or the decline
in the number of SMBs in our target markets.

Our industry is highly competitive, which may limit our ability to maintain or increase our market share or improve
our results of operations.

We face significant competition on a national and regional level from a number of companies purporting to deliver a
range of bundled services that are generally similar to the services we provide, including large professional employer
organizations such as the
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TotalSource unit of Automatic Data Processing, Inc. and Insperity, Inc., as well as specialized and small professional
employer organization service providers. If and to the extent that we and other companies providing these services are
successful in growing our businesses, we anticipate that future competitors will enter this industry. Some of our
current, and any future, competitors have or may have greater marketing and financial resources than we do, and may
be better positioned than we are in certain markets. Increased competition in our industry could result in price
reductions or loss of market share, any of which could harm our business. We expect that we will continue to
experience competitive pricing pressure. If we cannot compete effectively, our market share, business, results of
operations and financial condition may suffer.

In addition to competition from other professional employer organizations, we also face competition in the form of
companies and third parties serving HR needs in traditional manners. These forms of competition include:

·HR and information systems departments and personnel of companies that perform their own administration of
benefits, payroll and other HR functions;
·providers of certain endpoint HR services, including payroll, benefits and business process outsourcers with
high-volume transaction and administrative capabilities, such as Automatic Data Processing, Inc., Paychex, Inc. and
other third-party administrators; and
·benefits exchanges that provide benefits administration services over the Internet to companies that otherwise
maintain their own benefit plans.
We believe that our services are attractive to many SMBs in part because of our ability to provide workers
compensation, health care and other benefits programs to them on a cost-effective basis. We compete with insurance
brokers and other providers of this coverage in this regard, and our offerings must be priced competitively with those
provided by these competitors in order for us to attract and retain our clients.

We may not be successful in convincing potential clients that the use of our services is a superior, cost-effective
means of satisfying their HR obligations relative to the way in which they currently satisfy these obligations.

If we cannot compete effectively against other professional employer organizations or against the alternative means by
which companies meet their HR obligations, our market share, business, results of operations and financial condition
may suffer.

Adverse changes in our relationships with key vendors could impair the quality of our solution.

Our success depends in part on our ability to establish and maintain arrangements and relationships with vendors that
supply us with essential components of our services. These service providers include insurance carriers to provide
health and workers compensation insurance coverage for WSEs, as well as other vendors such as couriers used to
deliver client payroll checks and banks used to electronically transfer funds from clients to their employees. Failure by
these service providers, for any reason, to deliver their services in a timely manner could result in material
interruptions to our operations, impact client relations, and result in significant penalties or other liabilities to us. Our
agreements with many of these service providers typically have a term of one year. However, we engage some service
providers, such as payroll couriers, on an as needed basis at published rates. In addition, many of our employee benefit
plan agreements may be terminated by the insurance companies on 90 days’ notice. If any of these vendors decided to
terminate its relationship with us, we may have difficulty obtaining replacement services at reasonable rates or on a
timely basis, if at all. The loss of any one or more of our key vendors, or our inability to partner with certain vendors
that are better-known or more desirable to our clients or potential clients, could impair the quality of our solution and
harm our business.

We depend on licenses to third-party software in order to provide our services.

We license a substantial portion of the software on which we depend to provide services to our clients from third-party
vendors, including Oracle America, Inc. If we are unable to maintain these licenses, or if we are required to make
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significant changes in the terms and conditions of these licenses, we may need to seek replacement vendors or change
our software architecture to address licensing revisions with our current vendors, either of which could increase our
expenses and impair the quality of our services. In addition, we cannot assure you that our key vendors will continue
to support their technology. Financial or other difficulties experienced by these vendors may adversely affect the
technologies we incorporate into our products and services. If this software ceases to be available, we may be unable
to find suitable alternatives on reasonable terms, or at all.

If we are deemed to be an insurance agent or third-party administrator, we may incur significant additional costs and
expenses, which could harm our results of operations.

State regulatory authorities generally require licenses for companies that do business in their states as insurance agents
or third-party administrators, such as those that handle health or retirement plan funding and claim processing.
Insurance and third-party administrator regulation covers a host of activities, including sales, underwriting, rating,
claims payments and record keeping by
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companies and agents. We do not believe that our services constitute acting as an insurance agent or third-party
administrator. If regulatory authorities in any state determine that the nature of our business requires that we be
licensed as an insurance agent or as a third-party administrator, we may need to hire additional personnel to manage
regulatory compliance and become obligated to pay annual regulatory fees, which could adversely affect our results of
operations.

Most of our clients are concentrated in a relatively small number of industries, making us vulnerable to downturns in
those industries.

Most of our clients operate in the technology, life sciences, property management, professional services, banking and
financial services, retail, manufacturing and hospitality services industries. As a result, if any of those industries
suffers a downturn, the portion of our business attributable to clients in that industry could be adversely affected. For
example, in July 2013, we acquired Ambrose Employer Group, LLC, or Ambrose, a New York-based company that
provides HR services primarily to WSEs in the financial services industry in the New York area. If the financial
services industry were to suffer a downturn similar to the one that began in the fall of 2008, our Ambrose product line
would likely suffer.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness, which could adversely affect our financial condition and our operating
flexibility.

As of June 30, 2014, we had $575.4 million in outstanding indebtedness under our credit facilities, all of which was
secured indebtedness of our subsidiary, TriNet HR Corporation, guaranteed on a senior secured basis by us and certain
of our subsidiaries. Our level of indebtedness and the limitations imposed on us by our credit facilities could affect our
business in various ways, including the following:

·we will have to use a portion of our cash flows from operating activities for debt service rather than for other
operational activities;
·we may not be able to borrow additional funds or obtain additional financing for future working capital, acquisitions,
capital expenditures or other corporate purposes, or may have to pay more for such financing;
·some or all of the indebtedness under our current or future credit facilities bears interest at variable interest rates,
making us more vulnerable to interest rate increases;
· we could be less able to take advantage of significant business opportunities, such as acquisition

opportunities, and to react to changes in market or industry conditions; and
·we may be more vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions as a result of our inability to reduce
our debt service costs in response to reduced revenues.
Because borrowings under each of our credit facilities bear interest at variable rates, our interest expense could
increase even though the amount borrowed remains the same, exacerbating these risks. Our ability to meet these
expenses depends on our future business performance, which will be affected by various factors, including the risks
described in this “Risk Factors” section. We are not able to control many of these factors, such as economic conditions
in the markets where we operate and pressure from competitors. Our operations may provide insufficient cash to pay
the principal and interest on our credit facility and to meet our other debt obligations. If so, we may be required to
refinance all or part of our existing indebtedness or borrow additional funds, which we may not be able to do on terms
that are acceptable to us, if at all. In addition, the terms of our existing or future debt agreements may restrict our
ability to take some or all of these responsive actions. If we were unable to pay the principal and interest on our credit
facility or meet our other debt obligations, the lenders under our credit facility could terminate their commitments to
extend further credit to us and accelerate a substantial part of our indebtedness. If that were to happen, we may not be
able to repay all of the amounts that would become due under our indebtedness or refinance our debt. If we were
unable to repay those amounts or refinance our debt, the lenders under each of our credit facilities could proceed
against the collateral granted to them to secure that indebtedness. If that were to happen, our results of operations and
financial condition could be harmed and we might be forced to seek bankruptcy protection.
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The terms of our credit facilities may restrict our current and future operations, which would impair our ability to
respond to changes in our business and to manage our business.

Our credit facilities contain, and any future indebtedness of ours would likely contain, a number of restrictive
covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us, including restricting our ability to:

· incur, assume or guarantee additional debt;
·pay dividends or distributions or redeem or repurchase capital stock;
· incur or assume liens;
·make loans, investments and acquisitions;
41
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· engage in sales of assets and subsidiary
stock;

·enter into sale-leaseback transactions;
·enter into certain transactions with affiliates;
·complete dividends, loans or asset transfers from our subsidiaries;
·enter into new lines of business;
·prepay other indebtedness;
· transfer all or substantially all of our assets or enter into merger or consolidation transactions with another person;
and
·make capital expenditures.
Under the revolving credit facility, we are required to comply with a financial covenant that requires us and our
subsidiaries to maintain a maximum leverage ratio so long as there is any indebtedness outstanding under the
revolving credit facility (excluding letters of credit issued and outstanding of up to $15.0 million other than letters of
credit that have been cash collateralized). Our ability to meet the leverage ratio can be affected by events beyond our
control, and we may be unable to comply with it. Our failure to comply with this financial covenant or other
restrictive covenants under our credit facilities and other debt instruments could result in a default under each of our
credit facilities and/or other debt instruments, which in turn could result in the termination of the lenders’ commitments
to extend further credit to us under our revolving credit facility and acceleration of a substantial portion of our
indebtedness then outstanding under each of our credit facilities. If that were to happen, we may not be able to repay
all of the amounts that would become due under our indebtedness or refinance our debt. If we were unable to repay
those amounts or refinance our debt, the lenders under either of our credit facilities could proceed against the
collateral granted to them to secure that indebtedness. If that were to happen, our results of operations and financial
condition could be harmed and we might be forced to seek bankruptcy protection.

Volatility in the financial and economic environment could harm our business.

Demand for our services is sensitive to changes in the level of overall economic activity in the markets in which we
operate. During periods of weak economic conditions, employment levels tend to decrease, small business failures
tend to increase and interest rates may become more volatile. Current or potential clients may also react to weak
economic conditions or forecasted weak economic conditions by reducing their employee headcount or by lowering
their wage, bonus or benefits levels, any of which would affect our revenues, and may affect our margins, because we
may be unable to reduce our selling, administrative or other expenses sufficient to offset the drop in revenues. It is
difficult for us to forecast future demand for our services due to the inherent difficulty in forecasting the direction and
strength of economic cycles. These conditions may affect the willingness of our clients and potential clients to pay
outside vendors for services like ours, and may impact their ability to pay their obligations to us on time, or at all. In
addition, if businesses have difficulty obtaining credit, business growth and new business formation may be impaired,
which could also harm our business. Even modest downturns in economic activity or the availability of credit on a
regional or national level could harm our business.

If we fail to retain our key personnel or fail to attract additional skilled personnel, our business may suffer.

Our operations are dependent on the continued efforts of our officers and executive management and the performance
and productivity of our regional managers and field personnel. Our ability to attract and retain business depends on the
quality of our services and the relationships that we maintain with our clients. If we lose key personnel with
significant experience in managing our business, this could impair our ability to deliver services effectively or
profitably, could divert other senior management time in seeking replacements, and could adversely affect our
reputation with our clients and potential clients. Some of our most important client relationships depend on the
continued involvement of individual managers or sales personnel, and any loss of those individuals could jeopardize
those relationships and in turn adversely affect our operating results.
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Our future success will depend on our ability to attract, hire, train and retain highly skilled technical, sales and
marketing and support personnel, particularly with expertise in outsourced solutions and the technology platforms that
we deploy today and will deploy in the future. Qualified personnel are in great demand throughout the HR industry.
Our failure to attract and retain the appropriate personnel may limit the rate at which we can expand our business,
including developing new services and attracting new clients.

Improper disclosure of sensitive or confidential company, employee or client data, including personal data, could
result in liability and harm our reputation.

Our business involves the use, storage and transmission of information about our corporate employees, WSEs and
clients. This information includes sensitive or confidential data, such as employees’ Social Security numbers, bank
account numbers, retirement account information and medical information. We and our third-party service providers
have established policies and procedures to

42

Edgar Filing: TRINET GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

82



help protect the security and privacy of this information, but it is possible that our security controls over sensitive or
confidential data may not prevent the improper access to or disclosure of this information. Third parties, including
vendors that provide services for our operations, could also be a source of security risk to us in the event of a failure of
their own security systems and infrastructure. Any such disclosure could harm our reputation and expose us to liability
under our contracts and under the many and sometimes contradictory laws and regulations regarding data privacy in
the various markets in which we operate. Any failure to adhere to applicable laws and regulations or to our contractual
commitments with respect to the preservation and use of confidential information could result in legal liability and
could damage our reputation.

Any failure in our business systems could reduce the quality of our business services, which could harm our reputation
and expose us to liability.

Our business systems rely on the complex integration of numerous hardware and software subsystems to manage the
transactions involved in managing the client relationship through the processing of employee, payroll and benefits
data. These systems can be disrupted by, among other things, equipment failures, computer server or systems failures,
network outages, malicious acts, software errors or defects, vendor performance problems and power failures. Any
delay or failure in our systems that impairs our ability to communicate electronically with our clients, employees or
vendors or our ability to store or process data could harm our reputation and our business. If we are unable to meet
client demands or service expectations, we may lose existing clients and we may have difficulty attracting new clients.
In addition, errors in our products and services, such as the erroneous denial of healthcare benefits or delays in making
payroll, could expose our clients to liability claims from improperly serviced WSEs, for which we are contractually
obligated to provide indemnification.

We have disaster recovery, business continuity, and crisis management plans and procedures designed to protect our
business against a multitude of events, including natural disasters, military or terrorist actions, power or
communication failures, or similar events. Despite our preparations, our plans may not be successful in preventing the
loss of client data, service interruptions, and disruptions to our operations, or damage to our important facilities. The
precautions that we have taken to protect ourselves against these types of events may prove to be inadequate. If we
suffer damage to our data or operations centers, experience a telecommunications failure or experience a security
breach, our operations could be interrupted. Any interruption or other loss may not be covered by our insurance and
could harm our reputation.

If our systems were to fail for any of these reasons during payroll processing, preventing the proper payment of
employees, or the proper remission of payroll taxes, we could be liable for wage payment delay penalties and payroll
tax penalties, as well as other contractual penalties. Any inaccuracies in the processing of health insurance benefits
could result in our being liable for lapses in insurance. If any of our systems fails to operate properly or becomes
disabled even for a brief period of time, we could suffer financial loss, a disruption of our businesses, liability to
clients, regulatory intervention, or damage to our reputation.

Security breaches could compromise our data and the data of our clients and WSEs, exposing us to liability, which
would cause our business and reputation to suffer.

Our ability to ensure secure electronic processing, maintenance and transmission of payroll, insurance and other
sensitive client and WSE information is critical to our operations. We rely on standard internet and other security
systems to provide the security and authentication necessary to effect secure transmission of data. Despite our security
measures, our information technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable to cybersecurity threats, including attacks
by hackers and other malfeasance. Any such security breach could compromise our networks and result in the
information stored or transmitted there to be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost or stolen. Any such access, disclosure
or other loss of information could result in legal claims or proceedings leading to liability, including under laws that
protect the privacy of personal information, disrupt our operations and the services we provide to our clients, damage
our reputation and cause a loss of confidence in our products and services, which could adversely affect our business,
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operations and competitive position.

In the course of providing our services to our clients, we also rely on certain third-party service providers and
products, such as insurance carriers, to process information related to our clients and WSEs. Through contractual
provisions, we take steps to require that our service providers protect sensitive information. However, we cannot
provide assurances as to the security steps taken by such providers. Any security breach or other disruption of our
third-party service providers that results in an inadvertent disclosure or loss of confidential information could
adversely affect our reputation and our business.

We must keep pace with rapid technological change in order to succeed.

Our business depends upon the use of software, hardware and networking technologies that must be frequently and
rapidly upgraded in response to technological advances, competitive pressures and consumer expectations. To
succeed, we will need to effectively develop or license and integrate these new technologies as they become available
to improve our services commensurate with client requirements. In particular, we rely on enterprise software
applications licensed from third parties that are upgraded from time to time, such as PeopleSoft HR information
systems and Oracle databases, that provide the basis for our HR information system
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platform supporting payroll, benefits and other HR functions. Any difficulties we encounter in adapting applications
upgrades to our systems could harm our performance or delay or prevent the successful development, introduction or
marketing of new services. New products or upgrades may not be released according to schedule, or may contain
defects when released. Difficulties in integrating new technologies could result in adverse publicity, loss of sales,
delay in market acceptance of our services, or client claims against us, any of which could harm our business. We
could also incur substantial costs in modifying our services or infrastructure to adapt to these changes. In addition, we
could lose market share if our competitors develop technologically superior products and services.

Our co-employment relationship with our worksite employees exposes us to business risks.

We are a co-employer of our WSEs, and there is a possibility that we may be subject to liability for violations of
employment laws by our clients and acts or omissions of our WSEs, who may be deemed to be our agents, even if we
do not participate in any such acts or violations. Such laws include, but are not limited to, laws relating to payment of
wages, employment discrimination, labor relations and whistleblower protection. Although our client agreements
establish the contractual division of responsibilities between us and our clients for various personnel management
matters, including compliance with and liability under various governmental regulations, as well as providing for
clients to indemnify us for any liability attributable to clients’ or their employees’ conduct, we may not be able to
effectively enforce or collect these contractual obligations with our clients, which could harm our business. We
maintain employment practices liability insurance coverage (including coverage for our clients) to manage our and our
clients’ exposure for various employee-related claims, and as a result, our incurred costs with respect to this exposure
have historically been insignificant to our operating results. Employment practices liability insurance generally
excludes coverage for claims relating to compliance with laws associated with the classification of employees as
exempt or non-exempt, such as overtime pay and minimum wage law compliance. We cannot assure you that our
insurance will be sufficient in amount or scope to cover all claims that may be asserted against us and for which we
are unable to obtain indemnification from our clients. If judgments or settlements related to WSEs that we and our
clients employ exceed our insurance coverage, it could harm our results of operations and financial condition. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain appropriate types and levels of insurance in the future, that we will be
able to replace existing policies on acceptable terms, or at all, or that our insurers will be able to pay all claims that we
may make under our policies, any of which could harm our business.

Our failure to maintain or enhance our reputation or brand recognition could harm our business.

We believe that maintaining and enhancing our reputation and the TriNet brand identity is critical to maintaining our
relationships with our clients and vendors and our ability to attract new clients and vendors. We also believe that our
reputation and brand identity will become more important as competition in our industry continues to develop. Our
ability to maintain and enhance our reputation and brand identity will be affected by a number of factors, some of
which are beyond our control, including:

· the effectiveness of our marketing efforts;
·our ability to attract and retain new sales personnel to expand our direct sales force;
·our ability to retain our existing clients and attract new clients;
· the quality and perceived value of our services;
·our ability to successfully differentiate our services from those of our competitors;
·actions of our competitors and other third parties;
·positive or negative publicity about us or our industry in general;
· interruptions, delays or attacks on our website; and
·litigation or regulatory developments.
Any brand promotion activities in which we engage may not be successful or yield increased revenues. Furthermore,
negative publicity, whether or not justified, relating to events or activities attributed to us, our corporate employees,
our WSEs, our vendors, other companies in our industry or others associated with any of these parties, may tarnish our
reputation and reduce the value of our brand. Damage to our reputation and loss of brand equity may reduce demand
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for our services and harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Moreover, any attempts to
rebuild our reputation and restore the value of our brand may be costly and time-consuming, and any such efforts may
not ultimately be successful.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property, or if we infringe on the intellectual property rights of others, our
business may be harmed.

Our success depends in part on intellectual property rights to the services that we develop. We rely on a combination
of contractual rights, including non-disclosure agreements, trade secrets, copyrights and trademarks, to establish and
protect our intellectual property rights in our names, services, methodologies and related technologies. If we lose
intellectual property protection
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or the ability to secure intellectual property protection on any of our names, confidential information or technology,
this could harm our business. Our intellectual property rights may not prevent competitors from independently
developing services and methodologies similar to ours, and the steps we take might be inadequate to deter
infringement or misappropriation of our intellectual property by competitors, former employees or other third parties,
any of which could harm our business. We currently have one pending U.S. patent application covering our
technology. We own registered trademarks in the United States, Canada and the European Union that have various
expiration dates unless renewed through customary processes. Our trademark registrations may be unenforceable or
ineffective in protecting our trademarks. Our trademarks may be unenforceable in countries outside of the United
States, which may adversely affect our ability to build our brand outside of the United States.

Although we believe that our conduct of our business does not infringe on the intellectual property rights of others,
third parties may nevertheless assert infringement claims against us in the future. We may be required to modify our
products, services, internal systems or technologies, or obtain a license to permit our continued use of those rights. We
may be unable to do so in a timely manner, or upon reasonable terms and conditions, which could harm our business.
In addition, future litigation over these matters could result in substantial costs and resource diversion. Adverse
determinations in any litigation or proceedings of this type could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties and
could prevent us from using some of our services, internal systems or technologies.

Our use of open source software could subject us to possible litigation.

A portion of our technologies incorporates open source software, and we expect to continue to incorporate open
source software into our platform in the future. Few of the licenses applicable to open source software have been
interpreted by courts, and their application to the open source software integrated into our proprietary technology
platform may be uncertain. If we fail to comply with these licenses, then pursuant to the terms of these licenses, we
may be subject to certain requirements, including requirements that we make available the source code for our
software that incorporates the open source software. We cannot assure you that we have not incorporated open source
software in our software in a manner that is inconsistent with the terms of the applicable licenses or our current
policies and procedures. If an author or other third party that distributes such open source software were to allege that
we had not complied with the conditions of one or more of these licenses, we could incur significant legal expenses
defending against such allegations. Litigation could be costly for us to defend, have a negative effect on our operating
results and financial condition or require us to devote additional research and development resources to change our
technology platform.

If we are unable to implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in the future, investors
may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports and the market price of our common
stock may be negatively affected.

As a public company, we are required to maintain internal control over financial reporting and to report any material
weaknesses in such internal controls. Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that we evaluate and determine
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and, beginning with our annual report for the year
ending December 31, 2015, provide a management report on our internal control over financial reporting. This report
must be attested to by our independent registered public accounting firm. If we have a material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting, we may not detect errors on a timely basis and our financial statements may
be materially misstated.

We are in the process of designing and implementing our internal control over financial reporting, which process will
be time consuming, costly and complicated. If we identify material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting in the future, we are unable to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner, we are
unable to assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective or our independent registered public
accounting firm is unable to express an opinion as to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
when required to do so, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports and
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the market price of our common stock could be negatively affected, and we could become subject to investigations by
the stock exchange on which our securities are listed, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, or other
regulatory authorities, which could require additional financial and management resources.

If we are unable to successfully remediate the existing material weakness in our internal control over financial
reporting, the accuracy and timing of our financial reporting may be adversely affected.

In preparing and reviewing our consolidated financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30,
2013, and in connection with our restatement of previously issued consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2011, we and our independent registered public accounting firm identified a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of our financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The material weakness
identified related to our incorrectly recording a deferred tax asset in connection with our accounting for our
acquisition of Ambrose that should have been reported as goodwill as of September 30, 2013, and to incorrectly
recording a true-up to the income tax provision in 2011 related to the allocation of stock compensation between
qualified and nonqualified stock options that should have been identified and recorded in 2010. As a result, there were
adjustments required in connection with closing
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our books and records and preparing our consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30,
2013 and a restatement was required for our consolidated financial statements for the years ended 2010 and 2011.

In response to this material weakness, we have hired a Director of Income Tax Accounting, who reports directly to the
Chief Accounting Officer. We also will continue to engage external technical advisers to assist us with the evaluation
of complex tax issues and improve the processes, procedures and documentation standards relating to the preparation
of the income tax provision calculations.  We will continue to assess and develop our tax professionals in order to
ensure adequate technical and accounting expertise commensurate with our needs to properly consider and apply
GAAP for income taxes.

Our remediation efforts are continuing and we expect to make additional changes to our controls over income tax
reporting processes that we believe will strengthen our internal control. We have dedicated resources to the design,
implementation, documentation, and testing of our internal controls. We will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of
our internal control over accounting for income taxes and will continue to utilize external technical advisors to ensure
that our financial statements continue to be fairly stated in all material respects. However, we cannot assure you that
we will be successful in pursuing these measures or that these measures will significantly improve or remediate the
material weakness described above. We also cannot assure you that we have identified all of our existing material
weaknesses, or that we will not in the future have additional material weaknesses.

Neither we nor our independent registered public accounting firm has performed an evaluation of our internal control
over financial reporting during any period in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In light of the
material weakness that was identified as a result of the limited procedures performed, we believe that it is possible
that, had we and our independent registered public accounting firm performed an evaluation of our internal control
over financial reporting in accordance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, additional material weaknesses
or significant control deficiencies may have been identified.

If we fail to remediate the material weakness or to meet the demands that will be placed upon us as a public company,
including the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, we may be unable to accurately report our financial results, or
report them within the timeframes required by law or stock exchange regulations. Failure to comply with Section 404
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could also potentially subject us to sanctions or investigations by the SEC or other
regulatory authorities. We cannot assure you that we will be able to remediate the material weakness in a timely
manner, or at all, or that in the future, additional material weaknesses will not exist or otherwise be discovered. If our
efforts to remediate the material weakness identified are not successful, or if other material weaknesses or other
significant control deficiencies occur, our ability to accurately and timely report our financial results could be
impaired, which could result in late filings of our annual and quarterly reports under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, restatements of our consolidated financial statements, a decline in our stock
price, suspension or delisting of our common stock from the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, and could
adversely affect our reputation, results of operations and financial condition.

We incur substantial increased costs as a result of being a public company.

As a public company, we incur significant levels of legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a
private company. We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the
Dodd-Frank Act, the listing requirements of the NYSE and other applicable securities rules and regulations.
Compliance with these rules and regulations has increased our legal and financial compliance costs, made some
activities more difficult, time-consuming or costly and increased demand on our systems and resources. The Exchange
Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to our business and
results of operations. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure
controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. In order to maintain and, if required, improve
our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting to meet this standard, significant
resources and management oversight may be required. As a result, management’s attention may be diverted from other
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business concerns, which could adversely affect our business and results of operations. Although we have already
hired additional corporate employees to comply with these requirements, we may need to hire more corporate
employees in the future or engage outside consultants, which would increase our costs and expenses.

In addition, changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure are
creating uncertainty for public companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making some activities
more time-consuming. These laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due
to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is
provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance
matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. We intend to invest
resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in increased
general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management’s time and attention from revenue-generating
activities to compliance activities. If our efforts to comply with new laws, regulations and standards differ from the
activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to their application and practice,
regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings against us and our business may be adversely affected.
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As a result of disclosure of information in this report and the other filings that we are required to make as a public
company, our business, results of operations and financial condition are more visible, which may result in threatened
or actual litigation, including by competitors and other third parties. If any such claims are successful, our business,
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected, and even if the claims do not result in
litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert
the resources of our management and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our stock price may be volatile or may decline regardless of our operating performance, resulting in substantial losses
for our stockholders.

The market price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be volatile for the foreseeable future. The
market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, many of which are
beyond our control, including the factors listed below and other factors described in this “Risk Factors” section:

·actual or anticipated fluctuations in our results of operations;
·any financial projections we provide to the public, any changes in these projections or our failure to meet these
projections;
·failure of securities analysts to initiate or maintain coverage of our company, changes in financial estimates by any
securities analysts who follow our company, or our failure to meet these estimates or the expectations of investors;
·ratings changes by any securities analysts who follow our company;
·announcements by us or our competitors of significant innovations, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures
or capital commitments;
·changes in operating performance and stock market valuations of other business services companies generally, or
those in our industry in particular;
·price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market, including as a result of trends in the economy as a whole;
·changes in our board of directors or management;
·sales of large blocks of our common stock, including sales by our executive officers, directors and significant
stockholders;
· lawsuits threatened or filed against us;
·short sales, hedging and other derivative transactions involving our capital stock;
·general economic conditions in the United States and abroad; and
·other events or factors, including those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism or responses to these events.
In addition, stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to
affect the market prices of equity securities of many business services companies. Stock prices of many business
services companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those
companies. In the past, stockholders have instituted securities class action litigation following periods of market
volatility. If we were to become involved in securities litigation, it could subject us to substantial costs, divert
resources and the attention of management from our business and adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Substantial future sales of shares of our common stock could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

We may issue additional shares of common stock, convertible securities or other equity securities in one or more
transactions and at prices and in a manner as we may determine from time to time. Sales of a substantial number of
shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that these sales might occur, could depress the
market price of our common stock and impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity
securities. We cannot predict the effect that such sales may have on the prevailing market price of our common stock.

Edgar Filing: TRINET GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

91



All of our executive officers, senior management and directors and substantially all of the holders of our capital stock
are subject to lock-up agreements that restrict their ability to transfer shares of our capital stock for 180 days from the
date of our initial public offering, or IPO. Approximately 52 million shares of our common stock, based on the
number of shares outstanding as of June 30, 2014, will become eligible for sale upon expiration of the 180-day
lock-up period. J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Morgan
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Stanley & Co. LLC may, in their sole discretion, permit the parties to these lock-up agreements to sell shares prior to
the expiration of the lock-up agreements.

In addition, as of June 30, 2014, there were 7,756,382 shares of common stock subject to outstanding options and
12,000 shares of common stock issuable upon settlement of restricted stock units. We have registered all of the shares
of common stock issuable upon exercise of these outstanding options and settlement of these outstanding restricted
stock units, and upon exercise or settlement of any options or other equity incentives we may grant in the future, for
public resale under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Accordingly, these shares are eligible for sale in the public
market to the extent such options are exercised or such restricted stock units settle, subject to the lock- up agreements
described above and compliance with applicable securities laws.

In addition, as of June 30, 2014, the holders of 38,065,708 shares of common stock that were issued upon conversion
of all previously outstanding preferred stock in connection with our IPO, have rights, subject to some conditions, to
require us to file registration statements for the public resale of such shares or to include such shares in registration
statements that we may file for TriNet or our stockholders.

The existing ownership of capital stock by our executive officers, directors and their affiliates has the effect of
concentrating voting control with our executive officers, directors and their affiliates for the foreseeable future, which
limits your ability to influence corporate matters.

Funds affiliated with General Atlantic, our most significant stockholder, beneficially own approximately 46.6% of our
outstanding common stock, and all of our directors, officers and their affiliates beneficially own, in the aggregate,
approximately 61.8% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders will be able to determine
substantially all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant
corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets. This concentration of ownership
could limit the ability of other stockholders to influence corporate matters and may have the effect of delaying or
preventing a third party from acquiring control over us.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about our business, or publish negative reports
about our business, our share price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that securities or industry
analysts publish about us or our business, our market and our competitors. We do not have any control over these
analysts. If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our shares or change their opinion of our shares, our
share price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to regularly
publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which could cause our share price or trading
volume to decline.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of our company
more difficult, limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the market
price of our common stock.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of
control or changes in our management. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws include
provisions that:

·establish a classified board of directors so that not all members of our board of directors are elected at one time;
·permit our board of directors to establish the number of directors;
·provide that directors may only be removed “for cause”;
·require super-majority voting to amend some provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws;
·

Edgar Filing: TRINET GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

93



authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that our board of directors could use to implement a stockholder
rights plan;
·eliminate the ability of our stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;
·prohibit stockholder action by written consent, which requires all stockholder actions to be taken at a meeting of our
stockholders;
·provide that our board of directors is expressly authorized to make, alter or repeal our bylaws; and
·establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our board of directors or for proposing matters
that can be acted upon by stockholders at annual stockholder meetings.
These provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current
management by making it more difficult for our stockholders to replace members of our board of directors, which is
responsible for appointing the
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members of our management. In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the
provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which generally prohibits a Delaware
corporation from engaging in any of a broad range of business combinations with any holder of at least 15% of our
capital stock for a period of three years following the date on which the stockholder became a 15% stockholder.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

(a) Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

(b) Use of Proceeds

On March 31, 2014, we closed our IPO, pursuant to which we sold 15,000,000 shares of our common stock at a public
offering price of $16.00 per share, for an aggregate offering price of $240 million, resulting in net proceeds to us of
$218.6 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $16.8 million and offering
expenses payable by us of approximately $5.6 million. An additional 2,250,000 shares were sold by certain selling
stockholders pursuant to the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares. We did not receive any proceeds from
the sale by the selling stockholders. The offer and sale of all of the shares in the IPO were registered under the
Securities Act pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-192465), which was declared effective
by the SEC on March 26, 2014. The offering commenced on March 26, 2014, closed on March 31, 2014, and did not
terminate before all of the shares that were registered in the registration statement were sold. J.P. Morgan Securities
LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., Jefferies LLC, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company,
Incorporated and William Blair & Company, L.L.C acted as underwriters. No payments were made by us to directors,
officers or persons owning ten percent or more of our common stock or to their associates, or to our affiliates in
connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities registered. On March 31, 2014, we used $216.6 million
from the offering to repay the indebtedness outstanding under our credit facilities, as described in our final prospectus
filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) with the SEC on March 27, 2014.

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Not applicable

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable

Item 5. Other Information
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Not applicable

Item 6. Exhibits

A list of exhibits filed with this report or incorporated herein by reference is found in the Exhibit Index immediately
following the signature page of this report and is incorporated into this Item 6 by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

TRINET GROUP, INC.

Date:  August 6, 2014 By:/s/ Burton M. Goldfield
Burton M. Goldfield
Chief Executive Officer

Date:  August 6, 2014 By:/s/ William Porter
William Porter
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit No. Exhibit Form File No. Exhibit
Filing
Date

Filed
Herewith

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
TriNet Group, Inc. 8-K 001-36373 3.1 4/1/2014

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of TriNet Group, Inc. S-1/A 333-192465 3.4 3/4/2014

10.1 Amended and Restated First Lien Credit Agreement,
dated as of August 20, 2013, as amended and restated
as of July 9, 2014, among TriNet HR Corporation, as
borrower, TriNet Group, Inc., the lenders from time to
time party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
administrative agent. 8-K 001-36373 10.1 7/9/2014

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 X

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 X

32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 X

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Linkbase
Document

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document
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101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
Document

*Document has been furnished, is deemed not filed and is not to be incorporated by reference into any of the
Company's filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in any such filing.

**In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the information in these exhibits is furnished and deemed not
filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act of 1934, irrespective of any general
incorporation language contained in any such filing, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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